
I. 
 

II. A
 

III. 
 

IV. B
 

 A

 B

 

 D

 E

 F

 

 H

 

CALL TO O

APPROVA

OPPORTU

BACKGRO

A. Introd
 

B. Trans
 

C. SRTP
 

D. Finan
  

E. Servic
 

F. SRTP

G. Draft-

H. SolTra

(S

4:00
V

ORDER / IN

AL OF THE 

UNITY FOR

OUND ITEM

duction/Ove

ition Plan G

 Schedule 

cial Backgr

ce Evaluatio

 Public Invo

- Performan

ans On-Tim

 

Solano C
BOARD

0 p.m., Thur
Vallejo City

555 San
Va

MEETI

NTRODUC

AGENDA

R PUBLIC C

MS – INFOR

erview 

Guiding Pri

round 

on 

olvement 

nce Measure

me Performa

County T
 

D WORKSH
 

rsday, Augu
y Council Ch
nta Clara St
allejo, CA 

 
ING AGEN

 
 

CTIONS 

COMMENT

RMATION

nciples  

ement Syste

ance 

Transit) 
HOP 

ust 18, 2011
hambers 
treet 

NDA 

T 

N 

em 

 

1 

M

M

M

M

M

Cha

Jim M

Jim M

Michael Es
Moore & As

Nancy 

Michael Es
Moore & As

Michael Es
Moore & As

Michael Es
Moore & As

Michael Es
Moore & As

air Davis

McElroy

McElroy

hleman,
ssociates

 
Whelan 

shleman
ssociates 

shleman
ssociates

shleman
ssociates

shleman
ssociates



V. WORKSHOP ITEMS 
(Note: Supplemental Reports under this section will be provided at the workshop and can 
also be obtained by contacting the SolTrans office at (707) 648-4046 .) 
 

 A. Introduction 
(4:05 - 4:10 p.m.) 
  
 

Jim McElroy

 B. Interim Mission/Vision – Transition Plan Guiding 
Principles 
 (4:10 – 4:15 p.m.) 
  
 

Michael Eshleman
Moore & Associates

 C. Financial Options 
1. Constrained (current financial reality) 
2. Intermediate (outside assistance leading to possible 

2 year service modification strategy) 
3. Optimistic (new revenue source) 

 (4:15 – 4:30 p.m.) 
 

Nancy Whelan

 
 D.  Goals 

1. Sustainable baseline of service 
2. Increase efficiencies 

 (4:30 – 4:35 p.m.) 
 
 

Jim McElroy

 E. Service Options Discussion 
1. Implementation timeline constraints 
2. Service delivery considerations 

a. Productivity vs. coverage 
b. ADA vs. ADA plus service 
c. Innovative Alternatives 

(4:35 – 5:35 p.m.) 
 
 

Michael Eshleman
Moore & Associates

 F. Public Outreach Program 
(5:35 – 5:45 p.m.) 
 
  

Michael Eshleman
Moore & Associates

VI. WRAP-UP / BOARD COMMENTS 
(5:45 – 6:05 p.m.) 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Backgro
 
The follo
Worksho
Board on
the SolTr
 

 T
o

 Y
at

 T
to
ch

 T
a 

 T
se
se

 O
cr

 
Each sec
section a
 
I and you
know if y
 
 
 
 
 

Augus
SolTr
Jim M
Introd

ound: 

owing section
op on the Sho
n the specific
rans agency.

Through cons
ffset the tota

You possess w
ttention and 

The financial
o SolTrans a
hallenges. 

The Board wi
model for a

The Board wi
ervices.  We
ervices. 

Our timeline 
reating the p

tion of the b
nd why the m

ur entire team
you have any

st 11, 2011 
ans Board W

McElroy 
duction/Over

ns contain b
ort Range Tr
cs of carryin
.  I would of

solidation, th
ality of the fi
well-develop
work but th
 challenges a

are in very di

ill need to ca
n excellent t
ill need to co

e are serving 

for completi
plan. 

background p
material is in

m hope that y
y questions o

  (Solano 

Workshop 

rview 

background i
ransit Plan (
g out the pla

ffer the follow

here have be
inancial chal
ped transit se
e fundament
are not simp
ifficult finan

arefully cons
transit agenc
onsider many
communitie

ing the SRTP

packet conta
ncluded. 

you find the
or would lik

1 

 

 County Tr

nformation t
SRTP).  Our
anning proce
wing observ

een significan
llenges facin
ervices and s
tals are stron

ply a single c
ncial conditio

sider many o
cy.  This is to
y options fo
es that want 

P is short.  S

ains a cover s

 background
e additional 

ransit) 

to support y
r hope is to g
ess.  You are
vations: 

nt cost savin
ng the new a
supporting i
ng. 
city issue – e
on.  We are i

options for s
o gain and h
r increasing 
and need im

So, we will h

sheet that de

d information
background

A

our work at 
gain guidanc
e at a definin

ngs but the s
agency.  
infrastructure

each of the s
inheriting ex

streamlining 
hold the publ

revenues to
mproved publ

have to be qu

efines the con

n helpful.  P
d information

Agenda Item
August 18, 

the Board 
ce from your
ng moment f

avings have 

e.  They nee

ystems hand
xtraordinary 

our services
lic confidenc

o improve tra
lic transit 

uick and sma

ntents of the

Please let me
n.  

m IV.A 
2011 

r 
for 

not 

ed 

ded 

s into 
ce. 
ansit 

art in 

e 

e 



2 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Backgro
 
Included
 
Backgrou
services a
evident b
perspecti
 

1. S
2. R
3. C
4. Im
5. C
6. E
7. T
8. M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Augus
SolTr
Jim M
Trans

ound: 

:  Solano Co

und and reas
and therefor

but here are s
ive: 

ervices are t
Reduction of 
Consistency w
mproved cos

Consider uniq
Encourage pu
Try to mainta
Maximize op

st 11, 2011 
ans Board W

McElroy 
ition Plan G

ounty Transit

son for inclu
re are core to
some observ

to be coordin
carbon footp

with STA’s C
st effectivene
que characte
ublic particip
ain or expand
portunities f

  (Solano 

Workshop 

Guiding Princ

t Joint Powe

usion:  These
o the transit p
vations that c

nated. 
print. 
Countywide
ess and effic

eristics of eac
pation. 
d service lev
for regional f

3 

 

 County Tr

ciples 

ers Agreeme

e are intende
planning pro
could act as a

e Transportat
ciency. 
ch jurisdictio

vels. 
funding. 

ransit) 

ent guiding p

d to guide o
ocess.  Much
a planning c

tion Plan Tra

on. 

A

principles.   

ur provision
h of the cont
check-off list

ansit Elemen

Agenda Item
August 18, 

n of transit 
ent is self-
t from a Boa

nt. 

m IV.B 
2011 

ard 



4 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



5 
 

 

Guiding Principles for Consolidation 

The Coordinating Committee for the MOU adopted the following guiding principles in July 
2009, and incorporated these principles into the Memorandum of Understanding adopted by the 
City of Benicia, City of Vallejo, and the STA Board. 

1. The Benicia Breeze and Vallejo Transit services shall be consolidated to streamline, 
simplify, and improve access for transit riders through enhanced service coverage, 
frequency, affordability, and mobility options contingency upon available funding. The 
consolidated service shall be responsible for coordinating transportation services in 
Benicia and Vallejo and to locations beyond the two cities such as Bay Area Rapid 
Transit (BART). 
 

2. Consolidated transit service provides an opportunity to improve standards for greenhouse 
gas emissions and energy reductions, reduce single-occupant vehicle miles traveled, 
thereby minimizing the carbon footprint of Benicia and Vallejo residents. A consolidated 
transit service will further the Benicia and Solano County Climate Action Plans 
greenhouse gas reduction targets. 
 

3. The Benicia Breeze and Vallejo Transit service consolidation shall be consistent with the 
Countywide Transportation Plan Transit Element to maximize the ability of Solano 
residents, workers, and visitors to reach destinations within Solano County, and to access 
regional transportation systems. 
 

4. The consolidated transit service shall be designed to be comparatively cost effective and 
efficient while considering the unique characteristics of each jurisdiction. 
 

5. The consolidation of services shall be managed in a public and transparent process to 
encourage participation by residents, stakeholders, and decision-makers in both 
communities. 
 

6. The consolidated transit service shall strive to maintain the continuity of current service 
provided by both jurisdictions, minimizing service disruptions and passenger 
inconveniences due to the transition. If possible, service levels shall be maintained and 
expanded. 
 

7. The consolidated transit service shall maximize opportunities for regional funding. 



6 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Backgro
 
Included
process. 
 
Backgrou
our agree
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Augus
SolTr
Jim M
SRTP

ound: 

:   Consultan

und and reas
ement with M

st 11, 2011 
ans Board W

McElroy 
P Schedule 

nt memo wit

son for inclu
MTC as of D

  (Solano 

Workshop 

th an updated

usion:  We ar
December 31

7 

 

 County Tr

d schedule a

re on a tight 
, 2011.   

ransit) 

and overview

schedule dri

A

w for comple

iven by a fun

Agenda Item
August 18, 

eting the SRT

nding deadli

m IV.C 
2011 

TP 

ine in 



8 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

memo          

to: 
Jim McElroy,  

Executive Director – SolTrans from: Michael Eshleman 

re: 
 
SolTrans SRTP Schedule date:  August 4, 2011 

 
The purpose of  this memo  is  to provide  the Board with  a  schedule  for  completion of  the 

SolTrans SRTP as well as describe the  individual tasks  included within the scope.   The Short 

Range Transit Plan consists of a series of complementary pieces, each analyzing a separate 

facet of mobility within Benicia and Vallejo.  Altogether, these pieces form a cohesive whole 

which  serves  to  paint  a  clear  picture  of  demand,  efficacy  of  existing  services,  program 

performance,  travel  patterns,  and  financial/capital  resources.    These  elements  feed  an 

operations  plan which will  ultimately  guide  service‐related  decisions  across  the  next  five 

years.  The Short Range Transit Plan is scheduled for completion in December 2011, with the 

contract end date being December 31, 2011.  

 

The following chapters will be included in the complete Short Range Transit Plan for SolTrans:  

 
 Service  Evaluation:  This  includes  a  review  of  performance  data  to  identify  program 

strengths and weaknesses within each service or route, identifying any possible changes 

in patronage, costs, or revenue. The end result is a series of charts and graphs illustrating 

the performance of the two transit programs across the past three years as it relates to 

productivity, effectiveness, and efficiency.  

 
 Mission, Goals, Objectives, and Performance Standards: Clearly defined goals, objectives, 

and  performance  standards  communicate  vision.    Together,  they  provide  a means  of 

tracking progress operationally and  identifying growth opportunities.   They also provide 

insight into areas with possible performance concerns.  In practical terms, these provide 

a foundation for the remaining elements of the SRTP.   

 

28159 avenue stanford, suite 110 
valencia, ca 91355 

 
888.743.5977 : p 
661.253.1208 : f 

www.moore-associates.net



 

10 
 

 Demand Analysis: This element includes the identification and quantification of need as it 

relates  to mobility  services.    Through  this  task  we  will  also  analyze  potential  future 

service areas,  likely equipment and  infrastructure needs, areas or  resident groups  that 

are  likely  to use  regional  transit  services, and  social  service agencies and organizations 

that  could  benefit  from  improved  mobility  coordination.    This  task  also  includes 

demographic  projections  for Vallejo  and Benicia.    The  end  result will  feature maps  of 

target populations, major employers, and significant trip generators in the study area.  

 
 Ride Check Analysis: The data from the ride checks will be presented in both tabular (i.e., 

total boardings and alighting by  stop and passenger miles) and graphical  (i.e., primary 

boarding  locations)  formats.   These data will be used  to develop a comprehensive and 

objective snapshot of productivity and activity along each route and service.  Trends will 

be assessed at both the route level and system‐wide.   

 
 Operations Plan: The operations plan will be based on the findings from previous tasks. 

This will  consist of  a  series of possible  service  adjustment  alternatives  for  the Board’s 

consideration.   Each  scenario will  include  forecasts  regarding operating  cost, operating 

revenue, ridership, farebox recovery, community impact, and required infrastructure. 

 
 Our methodology for enhancing the public transit offerings within Vallejo and Benicia will 

spring from three separate, but related, approaches.   First, a constrained scenario aims 

to match service levels with the forecast budget shortfall.  The second approach aims to 

redistribute existing  resources without adding any additional  resources.   This  results  in 

enhanced  productivity  without  additional  operating  cost.    The  third  –  an  optimistic 

scenario  –  retains  service  to  all  parts  of  an  existing  service  area while  incrementally 

adding service to accommodate additional/future demand. 

 
 Capital  Improvement  Plan:  This will  include  basis  and  justification  for  revenue  vehicle 

projects/proposals,  replacement,  rehabilitation,  and  fleet  expansion;  non‐revenue 

vehicle projects/proposals, replacement, rehabilitation, and fleet expansion; and facility 

replacement,  rehabilitation,  upgrade,  and  expansion.    A  comprehensive  fleet 

replacement/growth  strategy  including  annual  recommendations  by  vehicle  type 

(revenue  and  non‐revenue),  cost,  lifecycle,  and  mix  will  be  developed.    Facility 

improvements  and/or  the  possibility  of  new  facility  locations  along with  other  capital 

requirements will be discussed in addition to the most‐probable funding sources. 

 
 Financial Plan: This deliverable will  include  forecast  levels of  service hours and  service 

miles, separately identifying fixed‐route and demand‐response modes by type, as well as 

expansion  service.    This matrix will  clearly  identify  the  expansion  or  reduction  of  the 

service  in question.   The end result will be separate pro forma for each service scenario 

(constrained, reallocation, and optimistic) detailing the  forecast expenses and revenues 

across the planning horizon.  

 



 

11 
 

 Community  Survey  Analysis:  A  community  survey  would  allow  the  project  team  to 

effectively quantify the travel patterns, barriers to use of transit service, mobility needs, 

and demographics of residents in the study area not currently using the transit service.  

 
 Public Meetings: These meetings would allow the project team to directly  interact with 

the general public and receive feedback on proposed changes to the system.  

 
A  schedule  of  the  items  included  in  the  Short  Range  Transit  Plan,  including  their  current 

status, follows.  

 
Task Delivered to Staff Progress In Scope?

Service Evaluation August 5, 2011 Complete Yes

Mission, Goals, Objectives, and Performance Standards August 12, 2011 Complete Yes

Demand Analysis August 16, 2011 Data collected, analysis underway Yes

Soltrans Board Workshop August 18, 2011 ‐‐ ‐‐

Ride Check Analysis August 19, 2011 Data collected, analysis underway Yes

Soltrans Board Meeting September 15, 2011 ‐‐ ‐‐

Operations Plan September 16, 2011
Work will begin following input from 

Board regarding preferred direction
Yes

Capital Improvement Plan September 23, 2011
Work pending direction from Board on 

Operations Plan
Yes

Financial Plan September 30, 2011
Work pending completion of Operations 

Plan
Yes

Community Survey Analysis September, 2011 No progress No

Public Meetings October, 2011 No progress No

Soltrans Board Meeting October 20, 2011 ‐‐ ‐‐

Draft Report November, 2011 No progress Yes

Soltrans Board Meeting November 17, 2011 ‐‐ ‐‐

Final Report December, 2011 No progress Yes

Soltrans Board Meeting December 15, 2011 ‐‐ ‐‐

Contract End December 31, 2011 ‐‐ ‐‐

 
 



12 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Backgro
 
Included
SolTrans
 
Backgrou
of our ch
way.   Be
no reserv
is an opp
simply a
financial
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Augus
SolTr
Jim M
Finan

ound: 

:  Five-year 
s’ Interim Ch

und and reas
hallenge – no
eginning in 2
ve funds and
portunity to b
a single city 
l condition. 

st 11, 2011 
ans Board W

McElroy 
cial Backgro

financial pro
hief Financia

son for inclu
ot enough res
2012/2013 w

d there are no
be smarter an
issue – both

  (Solano 

Workshop 

ound 

ojections and
al Officer. 

usion:   I wou
sources to co

we face a stru
o reserve fun
nd more effe
h of the syst

13 

 

 County Tr

d cover mem

uld be stating
ontinue prov
uctural defic
nds available
ective.  I wa
tems handed

ransit) 

mo detailing 

g the obviou
viding the sa
cit that must 
e to mitigate 
ant to be sur
d to SolTran

A

financial iss

us to say this
ame services
be eliminate
the shortfal

re you are a
ns are in ve

Agenda Item 
August 18, 

sues from 

s piece is the
 in the same
ed since ther
l.  Of course

aware this is
ry difficult 

IV.D 
2011 

e core 
e 
re are 
e, this 
s not 



14 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Discussio
 
In May 2
projectio
both Vall
2012/13.
potential 
This proj
growing 
 
In May 2
and new 
 

 M
2

 F
re

 T
 S
 S

fu
 F

hy
 G

E
 $

 
The adop
five-year
action to 
available
  

 

Augus
SolTr
Nancy
Finan

on:  

2010 the tran
n of revenue
lejo Transit 
 Without any
shortfalls, S

jection of sta
to a deficit o

2011 the FY 
projections 

MTC authoriz
010.  
are revenue 
eceipts. Fare

Transportatio
tate Transit 
ection 5311 
uture expecta
uel costs esc
ybrid buses.

General admi
Equivalent po

1.25 million

pted budget f
r projection a
address pote

e. For examp

st 9, 2011 
ans Board 
y Whelan, In
cial Backgro

nsition team 
es and expen
and Benicia 
y change to 

SolTrans was
atus quo con
of about $1.5

2011/12 ann
reflect sever

zed TDA rep

base for bus
e revenues ar
on Developm
Assistance F
non-urbaniz

ations that th
calated to ref
  Total annu
inistration co
ositions (FTE
n in operating

for FY 2011
assumes no c
ential shortf

ple:  

  (Solano 

nterim Chief
ound 

staff present
nditures to th

Breeze proj
cost and rev
s projected t

nditions resul
5 million ann

nual budget 
ral changes s

payment of $

s and paratra
re projected 

ment Act (TD
Fund (STAF
zed area fund
his revenue s
flect current

ual cost incre
osts reduced
Es).  
g contract co

-12 is the ne
change to co

falls.  The for

 

15 

 

 County Tr

f Financial O

ted an annua
he Steering C
jected annua
venue trends 
to be in a def
lted in a defi
nually therea

was adopted
since the Ma

$2.8 million

ansit is lower
to grow at 1

DA) decrease
F) decreased 
ds reduced t
source will r
t pricing and
eased by $47
d by $200,00

ost savings a

ew base for t
ost and reven
recast will c

ransit) 

Officer 

al budget and
Committee f
al operating d

or managem
ficit position

ficit of about
after. 

d by the SolT
ay 2010 proj

n to the Valle

r, reflecting 
.16% annua

ed, reflecting
by $1 m in F

to reflect cur
remain flat. 

d the introduc
75,000. 
0 annually w

and efficienc

the multi-ye
nue trends an
change as new

d ten-year op
for SolTrans
deficits begi

ment actions 
n beginning 
t $496,000 in

Trans Board
ection, inclu

ejo General F

current fare
ally. 
g current MT
FY 2013/14 
rrent apporti

ction of 21 d

with staffing

cies in FY 20

ar projection
nd no furthe
w informatio

perating 
.  At that tim
inning in FY
to address 
in FY 2012/
n FY 2012/1

.  The budge
uding: 

Fund in sum

 revenue 

TC forecasts
and beyond

onments and

diesel-electri

g at 5.5 Full T

011-12. 

n.  The curre
r manageme
on becomes 

me, 
Y 

/13. 
3, 

et 

mmer 

s. 
d. 
d 

ic 

Time 

ent 
ent 



16 
 

• The FY 2010/11 year end close from Vallejo and Benicia is uncertain, and not under 
SolTrans’ control. 

• The FY 2011/12 adopted budget does not include overhead costs to be paid to Vallejo for 
services needed during the early months of the first year of SolTrans’ operation.  The 
budget assumed salary and benefit costs at the existing rates.  Staff or services provided 
to SolTrans by the City of Vallejo will include overhead rates of 54%-111% on top of 
salaries and benefits.  We are trying to minimize these costs and to negotiate more 
favorable rates with the City of Vallejo. 

 
Results: 
 
Overall the deficit is larger and occurs earlier than projected in May 2010.  The current 
projection of revenues and expenditures is included in Attachment A and shows a $2.4 million 
annual operating deficit in FY 2012-13, with the deficit growing to $3.4 million in FY 2015-16.  
The near term deficit is due largely to the reduction in TDA reserves resulting from the re-
payment of the Vallejo General Fund. This projection is the basis for the revenue constrained 
scenario for the Short Range Transit Plan under development. 
 
 
Attachments: 

A. SolTrans Five-Year Projection FY 2011/12 – FY 2015/16 – Detailed Operating Revenue 
and Detailed Operating Expenditure Projections 

B. SolTrans Five-Year Projection FY 2011/12 – FY 2015/16 -- Assumptions 
 



SolTrans DRAFT Five Year Financial Projection Attachment A

FY 2011/12 - FY 2015/16 Page 1 of 2

Detailed Operating Revenue by Mode

1.159%

FY2011/12 FY2012/13 FY2013/14 FY2014/15 FY2015/16
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Bus Revenues
Fares $3,093,000 $3,129,000 $3,165,000 $3,202,000 $3,239,000
FTA Section 5307 Operating Assistance
FTA Section 5307 Preventive Maintenance 250,000              250,000              250,000                250,000                250,000              
FTA ARRA Preventive Maintenance
FTA Section 5303
FTA Section 5311 Non-Urbanized Area 42,503                50,000                50,000                  50,000                  50,000                
FTA Section 5316 JARC 200,000              200,000              200,000                200,000                200,000              
FTA Section 5317 NF
STAF Operating Assistance - Vallejo Rev Base 609,616              464,040              161,000                175,000                190,000              
STAF Operating Assistance - Vallejo Prop 42
STAF Operating Assistance - Benicia Rev Base -                      10,000                10,860                  11,794                  12,808                
STAF Operating Assistance - Benicia Prop 42
STAF Operating Assistance - Solano County Pop Base -                        -                        -                      
STAF Lifeline -                      
Regional Measure 2 (RM-2) 1,223,840           1,223,840           1,223,840             1,223,840             1,223,840           
Transportation Development Act (TDA) 5,516,841           3,568,633           3,506,702             3,593,164             3,681,699           
Intercity Funding Agreement 95,000                98,000                101,000                104,000                107,000              
Bridge Toll AB 664 PM
Other revenues 21,100                21,700                22,400                  23,100                  23,800                

Bus Revenues Subtotal 11,051,900         9,015,213           8,690,802             8,832,898             8,978,147           
Paratransit Revenues

Fares - Existing 71,000                71,000                71,000                  71,000                  71,000                
FTA Section 5307 10% ADA set-aside 667,000              667,000              667,000                667,000                667,000              
STAF Operating Assistance
Transportation Development Act (TDA) 798,300              844,600              889,900                938,200                988,500              

Paratransit Revenues Subtotal 1,536,300           1,582,600           1,627,900             1,676,200             1,726,500           
Taxi Scrip Revenues

Taxi Coupon Sales - Local 112,000              138,000              138,000                138,000                138,000              
Taxi Coupon Sales - Regional 15,000                15,000                15,000                  15,000                  15,000                
Transportation Development Act (TDA) 152,815              127,815              128,815                129,815                130,815              

Taxi Scrip Revenues Subtotal 279,815              280,815              281,815                282,815                283,815              

FAREBOX REVENUES 3,276,000           3,338,000           3,374,000             3,411,000             3,448,000           
FUNDING SOURCE REVENUES 9,592,015           7,540,628           7,226,517             7,380,913             7,540,462           

Total, Revenues $12,868,015 $10,878,628 $10,600,517 $10,791,913 $10,988,462

Net Annual Results
Bus -                      (2,378,607) (3,025,872) (3,215,555) (3,410,002)
Ferry -                      -                      -                        -                        -                      
Paratransit -                      -                      -                        -                        -                      
Taxi -                      -                      -                        -                        -                      

-                      (2,378,607) (3,025,872) (3,215,555) (3,410,002)

Transportation Development Act (TDA) Beginning Balance 2,335,145           147,440              0                           0                           (0)                        
Annual Revenue - Vallejo 3,582,546           3,690,022           3,800,723             3,914,745             4,032,187           
Annual Revenue - Benicia 828,586              828,586              853,444                879,047                905,418              
Add:  Investment Income
Use for Operations (6,467,956)          (4,541,048)          (4,525,417)            (4,661,179)            (4,801,014)          
Pass Thru to STA for Planning and Admin (130,881)             (125,000)             (128,750)               (132,613)               (136,591)             
Use for Other Purposes

Transportation Development Act (TDA) Ending Balance 147,440              0                         0                           (0)                          0                         
Reserve 1% 0% 0% 0% 0%



SolTrans DRAFT Five Year Financial Projection Attachment A

FY 2011/12 - FY 2015/16 Page 2 of 2

Detailed Operating Expenditure by Mode

FY2011/12 FY2012/13 FY2013/14 FY2014/15 FY2015/16
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Bus Expenses
Operating Contract 7,568,000            7,795,000            8,029,000            8,270,000            8,518,000            
Fuel 2,096,000            2,170,000            2,218,000            2,266,000            2,314,000            
Insurance costs 400,000               412,000               424,000               437,000               450,000               
Security 116,600               120,100               123,700               127,400               131,200               
Bus Facility Maintenance 63,900                 65,800                 67,800                 69,800                 71,900                 
Bus Maintenance 19,000                 20,000                 21,000                 22,000                 23,000                 
Utilities 33,000                 34,000                 35,000                 36,100                 37,200                 
Printing 13,400                 13,800                 14,200                 14,600                 15,000                 
Professional Services 50,000                 50,000                 50,000                 50,000                 50,000                 
Route 200:  Transfer costs to WETA (296,000)             (304,880)             (314,026)             (323,447)             (333,151)             
Ferry Ticket Office Transfer to Ferry (182,000)             (187,000)             (193,000)             (199,000)             (205,000)             
General Administration - Ferry Absorb -                       -                       -                       -                       
General Administration - Bus 1,170,000            1,205,000            1,241,000            1,278,000            1,316,000            

Bus Expenses Subtotal 11,051,900          11,393,820          11,716,674          12,048,453          12,388,149          
Paratransit Expenses

Operating Contract - Existing 1,247,000            1,285,000            1,323,000            1,363,000            1,404,000            
Fuel 66,000                 68,000                 69,000                 71,000                 73,000                 
Maintenace 44,000                 45,000                 46,000                 47,000                 48,000                 
Printing 9,300                   9,600                   9,900                   10,200                 10,500                 
General Administration 170,000               175,000               180,000               185,000               191,000               

Paratransit Expenses Subtotal 1,536,300            1,582,600            1,627,900            1,676,200            1,726,500            
Taxi Scrip Expenses

Scrips Payments - Local 236,815               236,815               236,815               236,815               236,815               
Scrips Payments - Regional 15,000                 15,000                 15,000                 15,000                 15,000                 
General Administration 28,000                 29,000                 30,000                 31,000                 32,000                 

Taxi Scrip Expenses Subtotal 279,815               280,815               281,815               282,815               283,815               

OPERATING CONTRACT 8,815,000            9,080,000            9,352,000            9,633,000            9,922,000            
OTHER EXPENSES 4,053,015            4,177,235            4,274,389            4,374,468            4,476,464            

Total, Expenses $12,868,015 $13,257,235 $13,626,389 $14,007,468 $14,398,464
PROOF -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Annual price per gallon $4.25 $4.40 $4.50 $4.60 $4.70
Growth 35% 4% 2% 2% 2%

Fuel Annual Consumption (in gallons)
Bus 479,400               479,400               479,400               479,400               479,400               
Paratransit 15,433                 15,433                 15,433                 15,433                 15,433                 

Total 494,833             494,833             494,833              494,833             494,833             

General Admin costs 1,368,000            1,409,000            1,451,000            1,494,000            1,539,000            
-12% 3% 3% 3% 3%



Attachment B

SolTrans DRAFT Five Year Financial Projection
FY 2011/12 - FY 2015/16
Key Assumptions

Revenues

Fares

Bus fares increase at a rate of 1.16% per year to reflect ridership growth. 
Paratransit and taxi fares remain flat. No fare increases planned.

FTA Section 5307 Preventive Maintenance Per MTC estimates for current year.  Assumed to remain flat.
FTA ARRA Preventive Maintenance ARRA funds were exhausted in FY 2010-11.
FTA Section 5303

Planning funds for SRTP were allocated in FY 2010-11.  Future planning 
funds for SRTP are not certain and are not included in the forecast.

FTA Section 5311 Non-Urbanized Area
Current year funds are based on the Regional Apportionment. Funds are 
assumed to remain flat at about the current level for the next five years. 
Section 5311 apportionments are under discussion at MTC and it is 
possible that SolTrans will not be a recipient of future funding.

FTA Section 5316 JARC Current year funds based on grant award. Future funding is not certain; 
assume that the federal program or similar program will be available at 
the same levels in the future.

STAF Operating Assistance - Revenue Based Includes MTC estimates.  Revenue based funds are based on prior year 
amounts including ferry ridership.  Future estimates do not include ferry 
ridership. 

STAF Lifeline In previous years, grants were provided for specific route. No inidication 
that these funds will continue to be available.

Regional Measure 2 (RM-2) Per MTC estimates and the requirements for the RM2 program, funds 
are estimated to remain flat for the next 5 years.

Transportation Development Act (TDA) Per curent MTC estimates and increased by 3% annually. 
Intercity Funding Agreement Estimate of net revenues from Intercity Transit Funding Agreement with 

increases of 3% annually. SolTrans operates 4 intercity routes and 
contributes to 3 intercity routes operated by FAST.  Net amounts due are 
calculated annually.

Other revenues Includes lease, advertising, and interest income. Increased at 3% 
annually.

Expenditures

Operating Contract Current contract costs for FY 2011-12 included with 3% annual cost 
growth estimated for future years. Competitive procurement of services 
expected for FY 2012-13. 

Fuel Estimated at $4.25 per gallon for the 5 year period.  Current rate is 
approximately $3.30 per gallon for diesel.

Insurance costs Increased at 3% annually.
Security Increased at 3% annually.
Bus Facility Maintenance Increased at 3% annually.
Bus Maintenance Increased at 3% annually.
Utilities Increased at 3% annually.
Printing Increased at 3% annually.
Professional Services Remain flat at $50,000 annually.
Route 200:  Transfer costs to WETA Rt 200 service operated by MV under SolTrans contract.  Cost passed 

through to WETA.  Increased by 3% annually.
Ferry Ticket Office Transfer to WETA Ferry ticket office operated by MV under SolTrans contract. Cost passed 

through to WETA. Increased 3% annually.
General Administration General administration costs are allocated to each mode based on the 

pro-rated share of the total budget. All general administration costs are 
assumed to increase by 3% annually unless otherwise noted.  Salaries 
and benefits are based on the compensation review completed by the 
HR consultant. 5.5 full time equivalent positions are assumed.



20 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Backgrou
 
Included:
evaluation
consultan
summary

Backgrou
diverse p
and exam
examine t
currently 

Vallejo F
a large co
income an

Vallejo D
of our pro
very costl
mandated

Benicia L
service ty
restructur
opportuni

Intercity 
to surroun
intercity s
income p
important

Augus
SolTr
Jim M
Servic

und: 

:  “First cut” 
n of system p

nt.  I call your
y of the consu

und and reaso
opulation wi

mining each su
the individua
provided: 

Fixed Route:  
ost center tha
nd transit dep

Demand Resp
ovision of fix
ly service on

d by federal l

Local Service
ypes tailored 
re services in
ity for saving

Services:  Op
nding jurisdi
services tend
opulations. T
t employmen

st 11, 2011 
ans Board W

McElroy 
ce Evaluatio

document fo
performance
r special atte

ultant’s findin

on for inclusi
th diverse ne
ub-service’s 
al routes and 

Local, tradit
at saw large r
pendent.   

ponse Service
xed route serv
n a per trip ba
law. 

es:    These ar
over time to 

nto a program
gs. 

perated with 
ctions and pr

d to be produc
They connect
nt and educat

  (Solano 

Workshop 

n 

or the SRTP, 
.  Also, inclu

ention to the f
ngs resulting

ion:  SolTran
eeds.  The ev
cost and per
service type

tional fixed r
reductions in 

e:  Local dem
vices.  Servic
asis but its se

re a rather od
serve Benici

m to better fit 

highway typ
rovide transit
ctive and ser
t to importan
tion destinati

21 

 

 County Tr

from our SR
uded is a sum
first couple o
 from their se

ns operates a 
aluation is a 
formance.  T
s within each

route transit s
the 2007 cos

mand respons
ce is limited 

ervices have b

dd accumulat
ia’s transit ne
today’s dem

pe coaches, th
t connections
rve well beyo
nt regional ca
ons. 

ransit) 

RTP consultan
mmary of initi
of pages of th
ervice evalua

very comple
good effort a

The SRTP wi
h sub-service

services with
st cutting effo

sive service m
to only ADA
been reduced

tion of variou
eeds.  There 

mand though t

hese services
s between the
ond the transi
arriers such a

A

nt, providing
ial findings f
his section.  T
ation. 

ex set of serv
at disaggrega
ill need to go
e.  Here are th

hin the City o
fort.  It tends 

mandated by 
A certified us
d to only thos

us creative an
is a big oppo
there will no

s connect Val
e two membe
it dependent 
s BART and

Agenda Item
August 18, 

g a high level
from our 
They provide

vices for a ver
ating our serv
o deeper and 
he sub-servic

of Vallejo.  T
to serve low 

ADA as a re
sers.  This is a
se absolutely

nd traditiona
ortunity to 
ot likely be a 

llejo and Ben
er cities.  The
and lower 

d therefore to 

m IV.E 
2011 

l 

e a 

ry 
vices 

ces 

This is 

esult 
a 

y 

al 

huge 

nicia 
e 



22 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 1 

CHAPTER X – SERVICE EVALUATION 
 

This chapter details the performance of the public transit services operated by the Cities of 

Benicia and Vallejo from FY 2008/09 through FY 2010/11.  During that time, each City was 

responsible for operating a fixed-route service and a complementary paratransit service.  This 

report is divided into three sections.  The first is an overview of each program, including 

operating hours and fare structure.   The second discusses the performance of those services 

offered by the City of Vallejo.  The third details the performance of those services offered by the 

City of Benicia. While these two services are now operated under the banner of Soltrans, we are 

analyzing historic data and as such refer to the two programs separately.  

 

Objectives of Evaluation 

The objectives of this chapter are to evaluate areas of each City’s transit program operations 

impacting day-to-day delivery of public transit service and to develop recommendations 

supporting sustainable service enhancements.  The evaluation will serve as the primary tool for 

analyzing the historic performance of each transit program and to provide a combination of 

subjective and objective evaluations of each system.  

 

The ultimate goal of the service evaluation is the advancement of practical recommendations 

for quantifiably enhancing both the productivity and effectiveness of each City’s transit 

program. 

 

Summary of Findings 

The following key findings have been identified through an evaluation of each program’s fare 

structure, operating characteristics, and historic performance. 

 

 Both programs have overly-complicated fare structures.  While it is important to charge 

different fares for local and regional service, it is clear fare payment options are not 

consistent and are impacting the user-friendliness of both systems.  For instance, the 

City of Vallejo has four Regional routes and three different fare structures for those 

routes. Day passes are available for Route 200 but not for any of the other services.  A 

Solano College Pass is available for Route 80/85 but not for any of the other services.  

Also, 10-ride passes and monthly passes for local service have three different tiers for 

adults, youth, and seniors/disabled while single-ride fare only has two tiers (adults and 

youth pay the same price).  

 

Benicia Breeze has a similar approach, offering six different fare structures (school 

trippers, local transit, Route 76, shuttles, DAR, and paratransit). This can be extremely 

confusing for patrons, especially with respect to the relationship between the DAR and 

paratransit services.  Should a disabled patron elect to take a trip using the DAR service, 

he/she would pay $1.25, but that same patron would pay $3.00 for that trip if made 



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 2 

using the paratransit service, even though they use the same vehicles and operate in the 

same service area. Resolving these issues and having a fair, consistent fare structure 

across the entire system is a priority for the new Soltrans system.   

 

 Service cuts in 2007 significantly impacted the quality of Vallejo Transit service and have 

resulted in continuing declines in productivity.  The last major service cuts involved 

significant reductions in productive service.  This has resulted in decreases in ridership 

and fare revenue that have contributed toward the budget shortfall forecast for FY 

2011/12.  Historically, cutting productive service to preserve life-line or non-productive 

service has limited utility.  This is due to the fact trimming an hour of service on a 

poorly-performing route saves as much operating money as does trimming an hour of 

service on a productive route; however, trimming an hour of service on a productive 

route results in much higher loss of ridership and fare revenue as a result of the fact 

more riders rely upon those services.  This SRTP will evaluate ridership patterns 

throughout the study area and recommend a new route structure that maximizes the 

effectiveness of the limited resources available.  

 

 The Benicia Breeze has significant overlaps in service. In reviewing the City of Benicia’s 

service offerings, it is clear they have evolved over time based on service requests from 

individual community members and not from a comprehensive approach toward 

maximizing the effectiveness of every dollar spent. There are two flex routes which, 

along with Route 76, provide the backbone of the program, but they don’t operate as 

flex routes for the entirety of the day.  Instead, they transition to general-public DAR 

services during off-peak hours.  This creates a significant overlap with the City’s 

Paratransit service, which operates at pretty much the same time.  Strangely enough, 

the City doesn’t even need to offer a paratransit service given it meets ADA 

requirements by operating its fixed-route services as flex routes. This SRTP will seek to 

better match transit service in Benicia to demand for such services.  

 

 Many of the City of Benicia’s services are not operating effectively. The City’s most 

productive services are its two school trippers, which is not uncommon in the transit 

industry, but no other regular services carry more than 4.5 Passengers/VSH.   In general, 

fixed-route services should carry at least 10 passengers for every hour of service offered 

and DAR/paratransit service should strive to carry at least three passengers for every 

hour of service.  Given resources are limited, reducing redundant or overlapping service 

is an easy way make transit services in Benicia more efficient.  



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 3 

Program Overview 

Vallejo Transit 

The City of Vallejo’s transit service -- Vallejo Transit -- is operated under contract by MV 

Transportation.  Vallejo Transit provides seven local fixed-route alignments and four 

regional routes. The City also operates a shared-ride, curb-to-curb Dial-A-Ride (DAR) 

service called Runabout for persons with disabilities precluding them from use of the 

fixed-route service.  Descriptions of the services follow. 

 

Local Fixed-Routes 

The City operates seven-fixed routes providing service locally within Vallejo.  

The routes range in scope from Route 5, which operates on 30-minute 

headways seven days a week from 5:30 a.m. to 8:38 p.m. to Route 3 which only 

offers two round trips daily to Glen Cove on weekdays. Base fare for local fixed-

route services is $1.75 

 

Regional Service 

The City of Vallejo is responsible for operating a variety of regional services.  

These include Route 78, which connects Vallejo and Benicia with the Pleasant 

Hill and Walnut Creek BART stations in Contra Costa County; Route 80, which 

connects Vallejo with the El Cerrito del Norte BART station; Route 85, which 

connects Vallejo with Fairfield and Solano College; and Route 200, which 

connects Vallejo with the San Francisco Ferry Terminal. Fares vary by service.   

 

Paratransit 

The City's Runabout service is a complementary, ADA-required paratransit 

service which offers curb-to-curb service to those unable to use the regular 

fixed-route service.  Runabout operates within 3/4-mile radius of local fixed-

routes.  

 

Exhibit X.1  Vallejo Transit Service Hours 

Service Hours Service Days Peak Frequency

Route 1 4:50 a.m. to 8:28 p.m. Monday through Saturday 30 minutes

Route 2 5:17 a.m. to 7:58 p.m. Monday through Saturday 60 minutes

Route 3 6:30 a.m. to 3:39 p.m. Monday through Friday Two round trips daily

Route 4 6:51 a.m. to 6:57 p.m. Monday through Saturday 60 minutes

Route 5 5:30 a.m. to 8:38 p.m. Monday through Sunday 30 minutes

Route 6 5:22 a.m. to 8:20 a.m. Monday through Saturday 60 minutes

Route 7 5:20 a.m. to 8:12 p.m. Monday through Saturday 30 minutes

Route 78 5:00 a.m. to 8:38 p.m. Monday through Saturday 30 minutes

Route 80 4:15 a.m. to 10:54 p.m. Monday through Sunday 15 minutes

Route 85 5:35 a.m. to 11:28 p.m. Monday through Sunday 30 minutes

Route 200 6:00 a.m. to 10:30 p.m. Monday through Sunday Five weekday and one weekend round trip

Runabout 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday through Sunday N/A  



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 4 

 

Vallejo Transit does not operate on the following holidays: New Year's Day, 

Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas 

Day.  A holiday schedule is in effect on President’s Day.  

 

Fare Structure  

The City offers a variety of different fare payment options for its customers.  

Base fare is $1.75 and $0.85 for seniors (age 65 and over).  While there is no day 

pass for local service, the day pass and monthly pass for Baylink Route 200 allow 

for unlimited travel on Vallejo Transit local fixed-routes, Route 80, and the ferry 

service. Local trips on Route 78 (i.e., between Vallejo and Benicia) follow the 

same base fare as local transit trips (i.e., $1.75 for adults), the $4.50 fare is for 

trips to BART in Contra Costa County.  A one-way trip on the Runabout Dial-A-

Ride service is $3.50 in Vallejo and $6.00 for travel to Fairfield or Pinole.  

 

Exhibit X.2  Vallejo Transit Fare Structure 

Route 78* Route 80/85 Route 200

Adult $1.75 $4.50 $5.00 $13.00

Youth $1.75 $4.50 $5.00 $6.50

Senior/Disabled $0.85 $2.25 $2.50 $6.50

Adult -- -- -- $24.00

Youth -- -- -- $13.00

Senior/Disabled -- -- -- $13.00

Adult $55.20 $98.40 $118.00 $290.00

Youth $43.20 -- -- --

Senior/Disabled $27.60 -- -- --

Solano College -- -- $104.00 --

Adult $15.60 $15.60 -- $103.00

Youth $12.00 $12.00 -- $65.00

Senior/Disabled $7.20 $7.20 -- $65.00

2-Zone -- $45.00 $45.00 --

3-Zone -- -- $51.00 --

Single Ride

Day Pass

Monthly Pass

10-Ride Pass

Regional
Local Transit

 
 

Benicia Breeze 

The City of Benicia’s transit service -- Benicia Breeze -- is operated under contract by MV 

Transportation.  Benicia Breeze provides two deviated fixed-routes (flex routes), one 

long-line regional route connecting Benicia with Diablo Valley College (DVC) and Sun 



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 5 

Valley Mall, two shuttles, and two school routes. The City also operates a shared-ride, 

curb-to-curb general-public Dial-A-Ride (DAR) service.  General-public DAR is the only 

service operated on Saturday, with no service provided on Sunday.  This service 

structure is relatively new, having been implemented in October 2009 in response to the 

elimination of Route 75 and its replacement with Vallejo Transit Route 78. Descriptions 

of the services follow.  

 

Flex Routes 

The flex-route program serves as the backbone of the City’s transit system. The 

two routes are timed to facilitate transfers with Vallejo Transit Route 78, which 

travels between Vallejo and the Pleasant Hill and Walnut Creek BART stations. 

The program allows passengers to schedule deviations within a reasonable 

distance of each route’s alignment in advance. The service operates during peak 

hours from 5:50 a.m. to 8:50 a.m. and 3:50 p.m. to 6:50 p.m. Base fare is $1.75 

plus a twenty-five cent fee for deviations.  

 

Dial-A-Ride 

The City’s general-public Dial-A-Ride program operates Monday through Friday 

during the midday and evening hours when the flex-route program is not in 

service (i.e., 7:50 a.m. to 3:50 p.m., and 5:50 p.m. to 8:20 p.m. The Dial-A-Ride 

program is the only service offered on Saturday. It has the same base fare and 

operates from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  

 

Paratransit 

The City’s ADA-Plus paratransit program operates from 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., 

and from 6:30 p.m. to 8:20 p.m. on weekdays.  Base fare is $3.50 for trips within 

Benicia and $5.50 for trips outside city limits. Trips must be scheduled in 

advance. 

 

Supplemental Routes 

To supplement the flex-route program, the City provides a number of routes 

that do not deviate from their alignment. The routes are targeted toward 

addressing common trip patterns among Benicia residents. Routes 15 and 17 

offer student-oriented travel within Benicia, while Route 76 travels between 

Benicia and Diablo Valley College as well as the Sun Valley Mall in neighboring 

Contra Costa County. Routes 15 and 16 are $1.50 per trip while Routes 76 is 

$4.50 per trip given the distance traveled. Each route provides a limited number 

of trips in the morning and afternoon.  

 

Shuttles 

The City operates two shuttles: one to Diablo Valley College on Wednesday; and 

one to Vallejo medical centers on Monday, Tuesday, and Thursday. The shuttle 



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 6 

services have an adult base fare of $5.00 and offer two round trips each day 

they are in service.  

 

Exhibit X.3  Benicia Breeze Service Hours 
Service Hours Service Days Frequency

Route 15 7:17 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Weekdays during school year Two morning trips and one afternoon trip

Route 17 7:02 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Weekdays during school year Two morning trips and one afternoon trip

Route 21 5:50 a.m. to 8:50 a.m. and 3:50 p.m. to 6:50 p.m. Weekdays 60 minutes

Route 22 5:50 a.m. to 7:50 a.m. and 3:50 p.m. to 5:50 p.m. Weekdays 60 minutes

Route 76 6:00 a.m. to 6:10 p.m. Weekdays Five round trips daily

Medical Shuttle 10:00 a.m. to 2:45 p.m. Monday, Tuesday, and Thursday Two round trips

DVC Shuttle 10:00 a.m. to 2:45 p.m. Wednesday Two round trips

Route 21 DAR 8:50 a.m. to 3:50 p.m. and 6:50 p.m. to 8:20 p.m. Weekdays N/A

Route 22 DAR 7:50 a.m. to 3:50 p.m. and 5:50 p.m. to 8:20 p.m. Weekdays N/A

Saturday DAR 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Saturday N/A

Paratransit 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. Weekdays N/A

 

Fare Structure  

The City offers a variety of different fare payment options for its customers.  

Base fare is $1.75 and $0.85 for seniors (age 65 and over).  A one-way trip on 

the Dial-A-Ride service is $3.00 for Youth and the General Public and $1.25 for 

seniors and persons with disabilities.  

 

Exhibit X.4  Benicia Breeze Fare Structure 

School Trippers Local Transit Route 76 Shuttles DAR

Adult -- $1.75 $4.50 $5.00 $2.00

Youth $1.50 $1.75 $4.50 $5.00 $2.00

Senior/Disabled -- $0.85 $2.25 $5.00 $1.25

Adult -- $55.20 $90.00 -- --

Youth -- $43.20 $81.00 -- --

Senior/Disabled -- $27.60 $45.00 -- --

Adult -- $15.60 $40.50 -- --

Youth -- $12.00 $40.50 -- --

Senior/Disabled -- $7.20 $20.25 -- --

Single Ride

Monthly Pass

10-Ride Pass

 
 

Performance Evaluation 

This section evaluates each City’s transit performance using a series of quantitative criteria to 

assess effectiveness and efficiency. The indicators were evaluated across a three-year period.  

System-wide evaluations reflect performance of the fixed-route local service, regional service, 

school trippers, and the demand-response programs operated by each City.  Given different 

transit agencies and regulatory bodies define terms differently, we have settled on the following 



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 7 

definitions for the purpose of this evaluation (these definitions comply with those of the 

California Transportation Development Act): 

 

 Vehicle Service Hours and Miles: Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) and Miles (VSM) are 

defined as the time/distance during which a revenue vehicle is available to carry fare-

paying passengers, and which includes only those times/miles between the time or 

scheduled time of the first passenger pickup and the time or scheduled time of the last 

passenger drop-off during a period of the vehicle's continuous availability (Note: A 

vehicle is considered to be in revenue service despite a no-show or late cancellation if 

the vehicle remains available for passenger use). For example, demand-response service 

hours include those hours when a vehicle has dropped off a passenger and is traveling 

to pick up another passenger, but not those hours when the vehicle is unavailable for 

service due to driver breaks or lunch. For both demand-response and fixed-route 

services, service hours will exclude hours of "deadhead" travel to the first scheduled 

pick-up, and will also exclude hours of "deadhead" travel from the last scheduled drop-

off back to the terminal.  For fixed-route service, a vehicle is in service from first 

scheduled stop to last scheduled stop, whether or not passengers board or exit at those 

points (i.e., subtracting lunch and breaks but including scheduled layovers). 

 

 Passenger Counts: According to the Transportation Development Act, total passengers is 

equal to the total number of unlinked trips (i.e., those trips that are made by a 

passenger that involve a single boarding and departure), whether revenue-producing or 

not.  

 

Vallejo Transit System-Wide Performance 

This evaluation reflects performance of the fixed-route local service, regional/intercity 

service, and the Runabout program for Vallejo Transit.  System-wide totals are 

illustrated in Exhibit x.5.  Given the fact the City’s fixed-route program comprises 90 

percent of system-wide operating costs, the system-wide trends mirror the fixed-route 

trends almost exactly.  System-wide data are used primarily to illustrate total operating 

cost and farebox recovery, which is a Transportation development Act (TDA) mandate.  

 



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 8 

Exhibit X.5  Vallejo Transit System-Wide Performance Indicators 

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

Operating Cost (Actual $) $8,655,277 $9,018,450 $8,594,878
Annual Change 4.2% -4.7%

Fare Revenue (Actual $) $3,218,455 $2,997,706 $2,780,010
Annual Change -6.9% -7.3%

Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) 116,902 117,909 108,206
                Annual Change 0.9% -8.2%

Vehicle Service Miles (VSM) 2,084,238 2,129,191 1,946,368
                Annual Change 2.2% -8.6%

Passengers 1,689,690 1,520,781 1,395,005
                Annual Change -10.0% -8.3%

Performance Indicators

Operating Cost/VSH $74.04 $76.49 $79.43
                Annual Change 3.3% 3.8%
Operating Cost/VSM $4.15 $4.24 $4.42

Annual Change 2.0% 4.3%
Operating Cost/Passenger $5.12 $5.93 $6.16

                Annual Change 15.8% 3.9%
Passengers/VSH 14.45 12.90 12.89

Annual Change -10.8% 0.0%
Passengers/VSM 0.81 0.71 0.72

Annual Change -11.9% 0.3%
VSM/VSH 17.83 18.06 17.99

Annual Change 1.3% -0.4%
Farebox Recovery 37.2% 33.2% 32.3%

Annual Change -10.6% -2.7%
Fare/Passenger $1.90 $1.97 $1.99

Annual Change 3.5% 1.1%

Performance Measure
System-Wide

 
 

 

 



 SOLTRANS  – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                              PAGE 9 

Exhibit X.6   System-wide Ridership     Exhibit X.7   System-wide Passengers/VSH 

1,689,690

1,520,781

1,395,005

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

1,800,000

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

14.45

12.90 12.89

12.00

12.50

13.00

13.50

14.00

14.50

15.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.8   System-wide Passengers/VSM    Exhibit X.9   System-wide Operating Cost/VSH 

0.81

0.71 0.72

0.66

0.68

0.70

0.72

0.74

0.76

0.78

0.80

0.82

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$74.04

$76.49

$79.43

$71.00

$72.00

$73.00

$74.00

$75.00

$76.00

$77.00

$78.00

$79.00

$80.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
 



 SOLTRANS  – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                              PAGE 10 

Exhibit X.10   System-wide Operating Cost/VSM     Exhibit X.11   System-wide Operating Cost/Passenger 

$4.15

$4.24

$4.42

$4.00

$4.05

$4.10

$4.15

$4.20

$4.25

$4.30

$4.35

$4.40

$4.45

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$5.12

$5.93
$6.16

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

$7.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.12   System-wide Farebox Recovery Ratio    Exhibit X.13   System-wide Fare/Passenger 

37.2%

33.2%

32.3%

29.0%

30.0%

31.0%

32.0%

33.0%

34.0%

35.0%

36.0%

37.0%

38.0%

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$1.90

$1.97

$1.99

$1.86

$1.88

$1.90

$1.92

$1.94

$1.96

$1.98

$2.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 11 

Vallejo Transit Fixed-Route Performance Indicators 

This section evaluates Vallejo Transit's fixed-route service using a series of quantitative criteria to 

assess effectiveness and efficiency. As with system-wide metrics, the indicators were evaluated 

across a three-year period.  Fixed-route services include both local routes (seven fixed-route 

alignments) and regional routes. 

 

The overall trend of the fixed-route performance measures mirrors that of the system-wide trend 

throughout the evaluation period (between FY 2008/09 and FY 2010/11), showing the same levels of 

fluctuations between fiscal years 2008/09 and 2009/10 and declines between fiscal years 2009/10 

and 2010/11.  

 

Exhibit X.14  Vallejo Transit Fixed-Route Performance Indicators 

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

Operating Cost (Actual $) $7,743,168 $8,130,846 $7,758,115
Annual Change 5.0% -4.6%

Fare Revenue (Actual $) $3,109,589 $2,912,869 $2,706,978
Annual Change -6.3% -7.1%

Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) 101,922 105,266 96,949
                Annual Change 3.3% -7.9%

Vehicle Service Miles (VSM) 1,929,023 1,996,455 1,832,507
                Annual Change 3.5% -8.2%

Passengers 1,658,607 1,494,891 1,372,603
                Annual Change -9.9% -8.2%

Performance Indicators

Operating Cost/VSH $75.97 $77.24 $80.02
                Annual Change 1.7% 3.6%
Operating Cost/VSM $4.01 $4.07 $4.23

Annual Change 1.5% 4.0%
Operating Cost/Passenger $4.67 $5.44 $5.65

                Annual Change 16.5% 3.9%
Passengers/VSH 16.27 14.20 14.16

Annual Change -12.7% -0.3%
Passengers/VSM 0.86 0.75 0.75

Annual Change -12.9% 0.0%
VSM/VSH 18.93 18.97 18.90

Annual Change 0.2% -0.3%
Farebox Recovery 40.2% 35.8% 34.9%

Annual Change -10.8% -2.6%
Fare/Passenger $1.87 $1.95 $1.97

Annual Change 3.9% 1.2%

Performance Measure
Fixed-Route

 
 

Ridership 

Exhibit X.15 shows the ridership for the City’s fixed-route service. As experienced 

system-wide, ridership declined across the evaluation period.  The largest decrease in 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 12 

riders occurred in FY 2009/10, followed by another decline in ridership in FY 2010/11, 

making up a 17.2 percent decrease in passengers since FY 2008/09.   

 

The precipitous decline in ridership was likely caused by the faltering economy which 

reduced demand for all types of trips, as well as changes in service, whether it be minor 

(i.e., elimination of a stop), or major (i.e., rerouting of an alignment).    

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Hour 

One of the most commonly-used yardsticks for assessing public transit service 

performance and productivity is Passengers/VSH. This indicator quantifies the number 

of rides provided within a single service or revenue hour. 

 

The Passenger/VSH metric also experienced a sharp decline in FY 2009/10 (12.7 

percent), remaining steady through FY 2010/11. This is not surprising since Vehicle 

Service Hours varied over the evaluation period while ridership declined steadily.  

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Mile 

Passengers/VSM is another metric commonly employed when evaluating public transit 

service effectiveness. It calculates the number of rides provided for each service mile 

traveled.   

 

Again, as illustrated in Exhibit X.17 this metric mirrors that of Passengers/VSH, showing 

a steep decline at the beginning of the evaluation period (12.9 percent) followed by no 

change in FY 2010/11.     

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Hour 

This indicator serves as a measure of a transit service’s cost effectiveness, illustrating 

the cost of providing a single hour of revenue service.  

 

As illustrated in Exhibit X.18, Operating Cost/VSH for Vallejo Transit fixed-route service 

steadily increased throughout the evaluation period by an average of 2.6 percent 

annually.   

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Mile 

This metric serves as a barometer of a transit program’s cost-effectiveness by illustrating 

how much it costs to provide a single mile of revenue service. 

 

As expected, Exhibit X.19 illustrates a similar trend among Operating Cost/VSM and 

Operating Cost/VSH across the evaluation period.  This is due to the fact fixed-route 

Vehicle Service Hours and Miles fluctuated at the same rates each year; each increasing 

by about 3.5 percent in FY 2009/10 and each declining in FY 2010/11 by about eight 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 13 

percent.  During this time fixed-route Operating Cost experienced a similar trend, yet at 

a faster and slower rate, respectively.   

 

Operating Cost/Passenger 

Another gauge of cost-effectiveness, Cost/Passenger indicates how much Vallejo Transit 

is spending to provide each unlinked trip. 

 

The fixed-route trend of this indicator is shown in Exhibit X.20.  In FY 2009/10, Operating 

Cost/Passenger increased by 16.5 percent, which was followed by an increase of nearly 

four percent in FY 2010/11.  The sharp increase in FY 2009/10 was due largely to the 

sharp decline in ridership, as Operating Cost increased (five percent) while ridership 

decreased by nearly 10 percent that year.  Overall, Operating Cost/Passenger has 

increased by about 21 percent during the evaluation period, a significant increase for 

only a three-year timeframe.  

 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 

Farebox recovery calculates the percentage of operating cost recovered through 

passenger fares. It is the most common measure of public subsidy of a transit service. 

 

In FY 2008/09, Vallejo Transit fixed-route services were operating above average with a 

farebox recovery ratio of about 40 percent.  This level was not sustained and due to 

decreases in passengers, fare revenues, and operating cost, the farebox recovery 

declined by 13 percent across the evaluation period.    

 

Fare/Passenger 

This metric indicates measures the average fare paid for every unlinked trip provided by 

Roseville Transit. 

 

Although Fare/Passenger has been increasing, Operating Cost/Passenger increased at a 

much more rapid pace between fiscal years 2008/09 and 2009/10, reducing the positive 

effects of this indicator on the cost-effectiveness of the system.  While Fare/Passenger 

was at nearly $2.00 in FY 2010/11, Operating Cost/Passenger was at $5.65.    

  



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                               PAGE 14 

Exhibit X.15   Fixed Route Ridership     Exhibit X.16   Fixed-Route Passengers/VSH   

1,658,607

1,494,891
1,372,603

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

1,800,000

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

16.27

14.20 14.16

13.00

13.50

14.00

14.50

15.00

15.50

16.00

16.50

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.17   Fixed-Route Passengers/VSM    Exhibit X.18   Fixed-Route Operating Cost/VSH 

0.86

0.75 0.75

0.68

0.70

0.72

0.74

0.76

0.78

0.80

0.82

0.84

0.86

0.88

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$75.97

$77.24

$80.02

$73.00

$74.00

$75.00

$76.00

$77.00

$78.00

$79.00

$80.00

$81.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                               PAGE 15 

Exhibit X.19   Fixed-Route Operating Cost/VSM    Exhibit X.20   Fixed-Route Operating Cost/Passenger 

$4.01

$4.07

$4.23

$3.90

$3.95

$4.00

$4.05

$4.10

$4.15

$4.20

$4.25

$4.30

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$4.67

$5.44
$5.65

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.21  Fixed-Route Farebox Recovery Ratio   Exhibit X.22   Fixed-Route Fare/Passenger 

40.2%

35.8%

34.9%

32.0%

33.0%

34.0%

35.0%

36.0%

37.0%

38.0%

39.0%

40.0%

41.0%

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$1.87

$1.95

$1.97

$1.82

$1.84

$1.86

$1.88

$1.90

$1.92

$1.94

$1.96

$1.98

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 16 

Ridership by Route  

Moore & Associates analyzed ridership data at the individual route level for FY 2010/11.  Exhibit 

X.23 compares each route showing Route 80 to have a significantly higher level of ridership than 

the other routes.  This is followed by Route 1 as having the second highest level of ridership of 

the system.  These ridership levels can be attributed to the fact there is significant demand for 

these services given they serve significant trip generators (i.e., multiple schools, BART, etc).   

 

Route 80 operates as a commuter route with 54 weekday trips traveling to/from the BART 

station in El Cerrito del Norte, with stops at key transfer locations as well as high frequencies 

during the peak morning and evening travel times. Route 1 has one of the most direct north-

south alignments paralleling State Route 29 (Sonoma Boulevard).  The route connects the main 

transit center (York and Marin) with the Serrano Transit Center, stopping at various 

shopping/retail centers and trip generators.  Route 1 offers 32 trips per weekday (Monday 

through Friday).    

 

The routes with the poorest ridership levels are 400, 81, and 3.  These routes all offer some form 

of special service and generally don’t offer many trips in a given day.  The low ridership on Route 

3 can be attributed to the fact it only operates two trips per day (one morning and one evening), 

Monday through Friday.  Route 81 was operated as part of an agreement with the North Bay 

Regional Center and has been discontinued.  Route 400 provides special service to Six Flags 

Discovery Kingdom.     

 

Exhibit X.23   Fixed-Route Ridership by Route 

 
 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 17 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Hour by Route 

Exhibit X.24 compares the Passenger/VSH by Route in FY 2010/11.  Given Route 7 only offers 

two trips per hour on weekday service days and only one trip per hour on Saturdays, it is near 

impossible for this route to operate with 95.2 Passengers/VSH, as suggested in the exhibit.  

Excluding Route 7, which suggests an anomaly, the most productive routes during FY 2010/11 

were 2, 80, and 6.   

 

The majority of the routes (both local and intercity) operated at between 10 and 20 

Passengers/VSH.  Although Routes 3 and 400 reported the lowest ridership levels, they are 

performing relatively efficiently, suggesting the low ridership is a result of the low levels of 

service for these two routes.  This does not hold true for Route 81, which experienced low 

ridership and the lowest performance (2.6 Passengers/VSH).   

 

Exhibit X.24   Fixed-Route Passengers/VSH by Route 

 
 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Mile by Route 

Exhibit X.25 compares the Passengers/VSM by route, which mirrors the trends illustrated in 

Exhibit X.24 above.  Again, Route 81 performed extremely poorly at only 0.1 Passengers/VSM.  

Route 400, with the lowest annual ridership, had the highest Passengers/VSM at 2.6, which was 

double that of most other routes.  This reiterates the fact Route 400, while operating low levels 

of service, performs at a high level of efficiency.  In contrast, Route 80, which had the highest 

annual ridership in FY 2010/11, is one of the lowest performing routes using this metric, 

transporting only 0.5 Passengers/VSM.  Given Route 80 had one of the highest levels of 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 18 

Passengers/VSH, these indicators are a reflection of the long distance and high speeds this route 

travels.   

 

Exhibit X.25   Fixed-Route Passengers/VSM by Route 

 
 

Vallejo Transit Dial-A-Ride Performance Indicators 

This section evaluates the City of Vallejo’s demand-response paratransit service, called the 

Runabout, based on a series of quantitative criteria to determine the effectiveness and efficiency of 

the program as a whole. The indicators are evaluated over a three-year period which allows 

illustration of recent as well as historic performance.  The evaluation period extends from FY 

2008/09 to FY 2010/11.   

 

Overall, when analyzing the trend in the Runabout performance measures across the evaluation 

period, all experienced a significant decline.  Operating Cost declined by eight percent, a much lower 

rate than the other measures which each experienced over a 20 percent decline since FY 2008/09.  

This has also negatively impacted system performance, as illustrated in Exhibit X.26.   

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 19 

Exhibit X.26  Vallejo Transit Dial-A-Ride Performance 

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

Operating Cost (Actual $) $912,109 $887,604 $836,763
Annual Change -2.7% -5.7%

Fare Revenue (Actual $) $108,866 $84,837 $73,032
Annual Change -22.1% -13.9%

Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) 14,980 12,643 11,257
                Annual Change -15.6% -11.0%

Vehicle Service Miles (VSM) 155,215 132,736 113,861
                Annual Change -14.5% -14.2%

Passengers 31,083 25,890 22,402
                Annual Change -16.7% -13.5%

Performance Indicators

Operating Cost/VSH $60.89 $70.21 $74.34
                Annual Change 15.3% 5.9%
Operating Cost/VSM $5.88 $6.69 $7.35

Annual Change 13.8% 9.9%
Operating Cost/Passenger $29.34 $34.28 $37.35

                Annual Change 16.8% 9.0%
Passengers/VSH 2.07 2.05 1.99

Annual Change -1.3% -2.8%
Passengers/VSM 0.200 0.195 0.197

Annual Change -2.6% 0.9%
VSM/VSH 10.36 10.50 10.12

Annual Change 1.3% -3.7%
Farebox Recovery 11.9% 9.6% 8.7%

Annual Change -19.9% -8.7%
Fare/Passenger $3.50 $3.28 $3.26

Annual Change -6.4% -0.5%

Performance Measure
Dial-A-Ride

 
 

Ridership 

Exhibit X.27 shows the ridership for the Dial-A-Ride service over the three-year evaluation 

period.  Runabout ridership has decreased rapidly by nearly 30 percent, or 10,000 passengers, 

between FY 2008/09 and FY 2010/11.   

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Hour 

One of the most commonly-employed yardsticks for assessing service effectiveness, 

Passengers/VSH, quantifies the number of rides provided within a single service hour.  This 

metric is shown in Exhibit X.28 for the Runabout service.   

 

This metric has followed the trend in ridership showing a steady decline throughout the 

evaluation period, however it has not decreased as dramatically.  This is due to the fact both 

measures, Passengers and VSH, decreased at nearly the same rate in fiscal years 2009/10 and 

2010/11.   



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 20 

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Mile 

The Passengers/VSM metric is another commonly-employed standard for evaluating public 

transit service productivity.  It indicates the number of passengers transported for each service 

mile traveled.  

 

This metric reflects a different trend than the Passengers/VSH metric.  As illustrated in Exhibit 

X.29, Passengers/VSM remained at about 0.2 for this service from FY 2008/09 to 2010/11.  The 

chart indicates very slight fluctuations throughout the evaluation period, for a total of a nearly 

two-percent decrease.       

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Hour 

This indicator serves as a measure of a program’s cost-effectiveness by determining how much it 

costs to provide a single hour of revenue service.   

 

This metric increased dramatically in FY 2009/10 by about 15 percent, followed by a less 

dramatic increase of nearly six percent in FY 2010/11.  Again, this is a result of the relationship 

between the two measures, wherein Operating Cost only decreased by 2.7 percent in FY 

2009/10 while VSH decreased more substantially (15.6 percent).    

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Mile 

This indicator serves as a measure of a program’s-cost effectiveness by determining how much it 

costs the City to provide a single mile of revenue service.  

 

Across the evaluation period, and as illustrated in Exhibit X.31, Operating Cost/VSM mirrored 

the trend of Operating Cost/VSH (see previous discussion).  This is no surprise given VSH and 

VSM decreased at about the same rate during FY 2009/10 as well as FY 2010/11.   

 

Operating Cost/Passenger 

Another measure of cost effectiveness, Operating Cost/Passenger determines how much the 

City spends on each unlinked trip it provides.  Exhibit X.32 displays this metric. 

 

As with the other Operating Cost indicators, this metric experienced a substantial increase in FY 

2009/10, followed by less of an increase in FY 2010/11.  Although Operating Cost decreased by 

8.3 percent across the evaluation period, ridership fell by nearly 28 percent during this time.   

 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 

Farebox Recovery Ratio indicates the percentage of operating cost recovered through passenger 

fares. It is the most common measure of public subsidy of a transit service.   

 

The farebox recovery ratio was at nearly 12 percent for the Runabout service in FY 2008/09, 

which is relatively robust when compared to other demand-response paratransit programs.  



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 21 

Exhibit X.33 illustrates the fact that during FY 2009/10 the farebox recover decreased to 9.6 

percent and continued to decrease to 8.7 percent in FY 2010/11.  This is a result of the dramatic 

decline in fare revenues collected for the service.     

  

Fare/Passenger 

This indicator measures the average fare collected for every unlinked trip provided by the City’s 

Runabout service.  The trend in this metric is shown in Exhibit X.34.  As a reflection of Fare 

Revenue and Passenger trends (decline), this metric fell by 6.4 percent in FY 2009/10 and 0.5 

percent in FY 2010/11 (from $3.50 to $3.26).  Given the decline in this metric is not as dramatic 

as the fall in the two measures (i.e., Fare Revenue and Passengers), this indicates the trend in 

fare revenue is most likely directly related to the trend in ridership.   

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                              PAGE 22 

Exhibit X.27   Dial-A-Ride Annual Ridership    Exhibit X.28   Dial-A-Ride Passengers/VSH  

31,083

25,890

22,402

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

2.07

2.05

1.99

1.94

1.96

1.98

2.00

2.02

2.04

2.06

2.08

2.10

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.29   Dial-A-Ride Passengers/VSM     Exhibit X.30   Dial-A-Ride Operating Cost/VSH  

0.200

0.195

0.197

0.192

0.193

0.194

0.195

0.196

0.197

0.198

0.199

0.200

0.201

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$60.89

$70.21

$74.34

$0.00

$10.00

$20.00

$30.00

$40.00

$50.00

$60.00

$70.00

$80.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                              PAGE 23 

Exhibit X.31   Dial-A-Ride Operating Cost/VSM    Exhibit X.32   Dial-A-Ride Operating Cost/Passenger  

$5.88

$6.69
$7.35

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

$7.00

$8.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$29.34

$34.28

$37.35

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.33   Dial-A-Ride Farebox Recovery Ratio   Exhibit X.34  Dial-A-Ride Fare/Passenger  

11.9%

9.6%

8.7%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$3.50

$3.28
$3.26

$3.10

$3.15

$3.20

$3.25

$3.30

$3.35

$3.40

$3.45

$3.50

$3.55

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 1 

Benicia Breeze System-Wide Performance 

This evaluation reflects performance of the flex-route service, Route 76, and the 

Runabout program.  System-wide totals are illustrated in Exhibit X.35.  

 

Exhibit X.35  Benicia Breeze System-Wide Performance Indicators 

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

Operating Cost (Actual $) $804,305 $434,220 $411,610
Annual Change -46.0% -5.2%

Fare Revenue (Actual $) $172,104 $90,361 $69,546
Annual Change -47.5% -23.0%

Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) 13,661 10,224 9,692
                Annual Change -25.2% -5.2%

Vehicle Service Miles (VSM) 185,319 108,690 105,597
                Annual Change -41.3% -2.8%

Passengers 85,800 49,869 46,002
                Annual Change -41.9% -7.8%

Performance Indicators

Operating Cost/VSH $58.88 $42.47 $42.47
                Annual Change -27.9% 0.0%
Operating Cost/VSM $4.34 $4.00 $3.90

Annual Change -8.0% -2.4%
Operating Cost/Passenger $9.37 $8.71 $8.95

                Annual Change -7.1% 2.8%
Passengers/VSH 6.28 4.88 4.75

Annual Change -22.3% -2.7%
Passengers/VSM 0.463 0.459 0.436

Annual Change -0.9% -5.1%
VSM/VSH 13.57 10.63 10.90

Annual Change -21.6% 2.5%
Farebox Recovery 21.4% 20.8% 16.9%

Annual Change -2.7% -18.8%
Fare/Passenger $2.01 $1.81 $1.51

Annual Change -9.7% -16.6%

Performance Measure
System-Wide

 
 

Ridership 

Since Fall 2009 when responsibility for operating Route 78 was transferred from Benicia 

to Vallejo, Ridership has diminished significantly.  In FY 2008/09 the City operated Route 

78 from July through October before transferring responsibility for that service to the 

City of Vallejo.  There have been no additional service changes since that time. Prior to 

FY 2008/09, Route 78 served as the backbone of transit service in Benicia and accounted 

for the majority of riders and revenue.  The continued decline in ridership (i.e., beyond 

FY 2009/10) can be attributed to a number of factors, including the recession, which 

resulted in higher unemployment and thus a drop in work-related trips as well as a drop 

in discretionary income which could be used for shopping trips, etc.  



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 2 

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Hour 

Passenger/Vehicle Service Hour is one of the most commonly-used measures of the 

productivity level of a transit program.  This metric quantifies the number of rides 

provided per single revenue or service hour (See Exhibit X.37). 

 

Across the evaluation period, Passenger/VSH decreased 24.4 percent. Once again, we 

believe this can be attributed in large part to the fact the City is no longer responsible 

for operating Route 78, which was a long-line service linking Vallejo and Benicia with the 

Pleasant Hill and Walnut Creek BART stations in Contra Costa County to the south.  

Overall, the City's current productivity as measured by Passengers/VSH is lower than 

one would expect for a combined fixed-route and demand-response service provider.  

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Mile  

Passengers/VSM is another measurement for gauging system performance and 

effectiveness.  This metric calculates unlinked trips provided for each revenue service 

mile provided. 

 

As Exhibit X.38 shows, Passenger/VSM declined 5.9 percent across the evaluation 

period.  This is much more modest than the decline in Passengers/VSH because of the 

nature of Route 78 as a long-line, freeway-based service which operates at higher-than-

average speeds.  As a result, when the service was transferred, the City witnessed a 

more severe drop in Vehicle Service Miles than in Vehicle Service Hours.   

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Hour 

Operating Cost/VSH illustrates the cost incurred by a transit operator in operating a 

single hour of revenue service. 

 

Exhibit X.39 shows the cost to provide a single hour of revenue service decreased in FY 

2009/10 as a result of the loss of Route 78, which had a high cost/hour given its long-

line operating structure. The cost of operating the program has since stabilized.   

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Mile 

This metric measures cost-effectiveness of operating the transit system by illustrating 

the total cost expended to operate a single mile of revenue service. 

 

Exhibit X.40 indicates the City has effectively trimmed the amount of money it spends 

on providing a single mile of service.  The metric has decreased 10.2 percent across the 

evaluation period, indicating the City is more efficient now than when it was responsible 

for Operating Route 78.  

 



SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                              PAGE 3 

Operating Cost/Passenger 

Another gauge of cost-effectiveness, Cost/Passenger indicates how much the City 

spends system-wide for a single unlinked trip.  

 

Exhibit X.41 illustrates the fact the City's Operating Cost/Passenger has fluctuated across 

the evaluation period, decreasing in FY 2009/10 before increasing slightly in FY 2010/11.  

Overall, the metric decreased 4.5 percent between FY 2008/09 and FY 2009/10.  This 

reveals the City now spends less to carry each passenger than it did in the past.  That 

said, the overall Operating Cost/Passenger figure is higher than average for a system 

operating similar services.  

 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 

Farebox Recovery reflects the percentage of operating cost recovered through 

passenger fares. It is the most common measure of public subsidy of a transit service. 

 

Over the evaluation period, the City's farebox recovery ratio fell from 21.4 percent to 

16.9 percent.  The majority of this drop came in FY 2010/11, indicating this is a result of 

continued ridership decline caused by the uncertainty created by the economic climate.   

 

Fare/Passenger 

This metric indicates the average fare paid by each passenger/unlinked trip on Benicia 

Breeze. 

 

At more than $1.50 per passenger, the City's Fare/Passenger metric is robust and can be 

attributed in large part to the fact the City charges a premium for some of its services 

(i.e., DAR, the Medical Shuttle, the DVC Shuttle, etc.).  

 



 SOLTRANS  – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                              PAGE 4 

Exhibit X.36   System-wide Ridership     Exhibit X.37   System-wide Passengers/VSH 

85,800

49,869
46,002

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

6.28

4.88 4.75

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
 

Exhibit X.38   System-wide Passengers/VSM    Exhibit X.39   System-wide Operating Cost/VSH 

0.463

0.459

0.436

0.420

0.425

0.430

0.435

0.440

0.445

0.450

0.455

0.460

0.465

0.470

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

  



 SOLTRANS  – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                              PAGE 5 

Exhibit X.40   System-wide Operating Cost/VSM          Exhibit X.41  System-wide Operating Cost/Passenger 

$4.34

$4.00

$3.90

$3.60

$3.70

$3.80

$3.90

$4.00

$4.10

$4.20

$4.30

$4.40

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$9.37

$8.71

$8.95

$8.20

$8.40

$8.60

$8.80

$9.00

$9.20

$9.40

$9.60

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
 

Exhibit X.42  System-wide Farebox Recovery Ratio    Exhibit X.43   System-wide Fare/Passenger 

21.4%
20.8%

16.9%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$2.01

$1.81

$1.51

$0.00

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 6 

Benicia Breeze Fixed-Route Performance Indicators 

This section evaluates the City’s fixed-route service using a series of quantitative criteria to assess 

effectiveness and efficiency. The indicators were evaluated across a five-year period.  Fixed-route 

services include The two flex routes (Route 21 and 22), two school trippers (Routes 15 and 17), a 

regional route (Route 76), two shuttles (Medical Shuttle and Diablo Valley College Shuttle), and any 

special services. 

 

Exhibit X.44  Benicia Breeze Fixed-Route Performance Indicators 

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

Operating Cost (Actual $) $590,875 $237,527 $223,096
Annual Change -59.8% -6.1%

Fare Revenue (Actual $) $157,332 $77,116 $56,777
Annual Change -51.0% -26.4%

Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) 9,659 5,593 5,253
                Annual Change -42.1% -6.1%

Vehicle Service Miles (VSM) 143,258 70,602 68,149
                Annual Change -50.7% -3.5%

Passengers 77,371 43,161 38,077
                Annual Change -44.2% -11.8%

Performance Indicators

Operating Cost/VSH $61.17 $42.47 $42.47
                Annual Change -30.6% 0.0%
Operating Cost/VSM $4.12 $3.36 $3.27

Annual Change -18.4% -2.7%

Operating Cost/Passenger $7.64 $5.50 $5.86
                Annual Change -27.9% 6.5%

Passengers/VSH 8.01 7.72 7.25
Annual Change -3.7% -6.1%

Passengers/VSM 0.54 0.61 0.56
Annual Change 13.2% -8.6%

VSM/VSH 14.83 12.62 12.97
Annual Change -14.9% 2.8%

Farebox Recovery 26.6% 32.5% 25.4%
Annual Change 21.9% -21.6%

Fare/Passenger $2.03 $1.79 $1.49
Annual Change -12.1% -16.5%

Performance Measure
Fixed-Route

 
 

Ridership 

Exhibit X.45 shows the ridership on the City’s fixed-route services.  Given Route 78 was included 

within the City's fixed-route numbers of FY 2008/09 and prior, the drop in ridership in FY 

2009/10 is expected.  However, the continued decline in ridership in FY 2010/11 is most likely 

attributable to the ongoing recession and a softening in demand for both commuter and 

discretionary trips.  

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 7 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Hour 

One of the most commonly-used yardsticks for assessing public transit service performance and 

productivity is Passengers/VSH. This indicator quantifies the number of rides provided within a 

single service or revenue hour.  

 

The City's fixed-route Passengers/VSH metric decreased 9.5 percent across the evaluation 

period.  Overall, for a fixed-route program, the City's productivity is relatively modest at under 

10 Passengers/VSH.  This can be attributed in part to the nature of some of the City's services as 

flex routes, which -- in general -- are less productive than traditional fixed-route alignments.  

 

Given the City's services will be consolidated with the City of Vallejo's under the Soltrans banner, 

we believe there are opportunities to increase the productivity of transit service in Benicia 

through reducing overlap and bolstering regional connections.  

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Mile 

Passengers/VSM is another metric commonly employed when evaluating public transit service 

effectiveness. It calculates the number of rides provided for each service mile traveled.  

 

In transferring responsibility for operating Route 78 to the City of Vallejo, the City realized an 

improvement in Passengers/VSM given that route required a significant number of Vehicle 

Service Miles to operate.  In FY 2010/11, The City's productivity as measured by Passengers/VSM 

declined 8.6 percent, consistent with the City's Passengers/VSH metric.  

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Hour 

This indicator serves as a measure of a transit program’s cost-effectiveness, illustrating the cost 

of providing a single hour of revenue service.  

 

Overall, the City witnessed significant improvement with respect to the cost-effectiveness of its 

service as measured by Operating Cost/VSH.  The metric improved 30.6 percent across the 

evaluation period, due in large part to the loss of Route 78, which was a much more resource-

intensive service to operate than the rest of the City's fixed-route alignments.  

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Mile 

This metric serves as a barometer of a transit program’s cost-effectiveness by illustrating how 

much it costs to provide a single mile of revenue service. 

 

Mirroring the trend with respect to the system-wide Operating Cost/VSM, the City's cost-

effectiveness improved over the evaluation period.  Overall, the fixed-route Operating Cost/VSM 

improved from $4.12/VSM to $3.27/VSM, a 20.6-percent decrease.  

  



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 8 

Operating Cost/Passenger 

Another gauge of cost-effectiveness, Cost/Passenger indicates how much the City is spending to 

provide each Benicia Breeze fixed-route unlinked trip. 

 

The City also witnessed a significant improvement in the cost-effectiveness of its fixed-route 

services as measured by Operating Cost/Passenger.  Overall, the metric improved from 

$7.64/Passenger to $5.86/Passenger, a 23.3-percent decrease across the evaluation period.  

That said, the City still spends well above industry standards for each fixed-route passenger.  

This is the result of modest productivity on the City's fixed-routes.  

 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 

Farebox recovery calculates the percentage of operating cost recovered through passenger 

fares. It is the most common measure of public subsidy of a transit service. 

 

Despite the City's high Operating Cost/Passenger and low productivity, the City's farebox 

recovery ratio is quite high for an operator of this size.  This is due in large part to the low 

overall cost of the program as well as the extremely high revenue collected from individual 

passengers.  

 

Fare/Passenger 

This metric indicates measures the average fare paid for every unlinked trip provided by Benicia 

Breeze's fixed-route services. 

 

While the City's fixed-route Fare/Passenger decreased 26.7 percent across the evaluation 

period, the overall Fare/Passenger figure still remains quite high, contributing to the City's 

relatively robust Farebox Recovery Ratio.  

 

 

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                               PAGE 9 

Exhibit X.45   Fixed Route Ridership     Exhibit X.46   Fixed-Route Passengers/VSH 

77,371

43,161

38,077

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

8.01

7.72

7.25

6.80

7.00

7.20

7.40

7.60

7.80

8.00

8.20

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.47   Fixed-Route Passengers/VSM    Exhibit X.48   Fixed-Route Operating Cost/VSH 

0.54

0.61

0.56

0.50

0.52

0.54

0.56

0.58

0.60

0.62

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$61.17

$42.47 $42.47

$0.00

$10.00

$20.00

$30.00

$40.00

$50.00

$60.00

$70.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                               PAGE 10 

Exhibit X.49   Fixed-Route Operating Cost/VSM   Exhibit X.50   Fixed-Route Operating Cost/Passenger 

$4.12

$3.36

$3.27

$0.00

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

$3.00

$3.50

$4.00

$4.50

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$7.64

$5.50

$5.86

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

$7.00

$8.00

$9.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.51  Fixed-Route Farebox Recovery Ratio   Exhibit X.52   Fixed-Route Fare/Passenger 

26.6%

32.5%

25.4%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$2.03

$1.79

$1.49

$0.00

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
   



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 11 

Ridership by Route  

Moore & Associates analyzed ridership data from FY 2010/11 for each of the routes the City 

operates.  There is significant disparity between the different routes with respect to ridership 

and productivity.   The two school routes (Routes 15 and 17) outperformed all of the other 

routes in the system with respect to overall ridership with the exception of Route 76, which 

serves Diablo Valley College.  Route 17 has the highest ridership, carrying 16,057 passengers 

despite having only four trips daily while school is in session. Route 76 carried 8,873 passengers 

and Route 15 carried 8,685 passengers in FY 2010/11.  No other route carried more than 2,500 

passengers with the two shuttle services carrying fewer than 150 passengers each.  

 

Exhibit X.53  Benicia Breeze Ridership by Route 

 
 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Hour by Route 

Based on Passengers/VSH, some of the City's routes are extremely productive.  Routes 15 and 

17 were quite successful, carrying 16.1 Passengers/VSH and 21.3 Passengers/VSH, respectively.  

Among the remainder of the services, Route 76 was the next most productive non-special 

service at 4.5 Passengers/VSH.  It is critical to note the most productive Dial-A-Ride service is the 

paratransit program, which limits its eligibility to persons with disabilities.  The City's general 

Public Dial-A-Ride services (DAR 1, 2, and 3) were not as productive as their fixed-route 

counterparts.  

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 12 

Exhibit X.54  Benicia Breeze Passengers/VSH by Route 

 
Passengers/Vehicle Service Mile by Route 

Productivity trends for the City's services as measured by Passengers/VSM were similar to the 

trends seen in the Passengers/VSH metric.  Routes 15 and 17 were quite successful, carrying 1.2 

Passengers/VSM and 1.9 Passengers/VSM, respectively.  

 

Exhibit X.55  Benicia Breeze Passengers/VSM by Route 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 13 

Benicia Breeze Dial-A-Ride Performance Indicators 

This section evaluates the City of Benicia's Dial-A-Ride service based on a series of quantitative 

criteria to determine the effectiveness and efficiency of the program as a whole. The indicators are 

evaluated over a five-year period which allows illustration of recent as well as historic performance.  

This analysis reflects the following: 

 General Public Dial-A-Ride offered on Route 21 between 8:50 a.m. and 3:50 p.m. and after 

6:50 p.m. 

 General Public Dial-A-Ride offered on Route 22 between 7:50 a.m. and 3:50 p.m. and after 

5:50 p.m. 

 Saturday General Public Dial-A-Ride service between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. 

 ADA Paratransit service between 6:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. and 6:30 p.m. and 8:20 p.m. 

 

Exhibit X.56  Benicia Breeze Dial-A-Ride Performance Indicators 

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

Operating Cost (Actual $) $213,430 $196,693 $188,515
Annual Change -7.8% -4.2%

Fare Revenue (Actual $) $14,772 $13,244 $12,770
Annual Change -10.3% -3.6%

Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) 4,002 4,631 4,439
                Annual Change 15.7% -4.2%

Vehicle Service Miles (VSM) 42,061 38,088 37,448
                Annual Change -9.4% -1.7%

Passengers 8,429 6,708 7,925
                Annual Change -20.4% 18.1%

Performance Indicators

Operating Cost/VSH $53.33 $42.47 $42.47
                Annual Change -20.4% 0.0%
Operating Cost/VSM $5.07 $5.16 $5.03

Annual Change 1.8% -2.5%
Operating Cost/Passenger $25.32 $29.32 $23.79

                Annual Change 15.8% -18.9%
Passengers/VSH 2.11 1.45 1.79

Annual Change -31.2% 23.3%
Passengers/VSM 0.20 0.18 0.21

Annual Change -12.1% 20.2%
VSM/VSH 10.51 8.22 8.44

Annual Change -21.8% 2.6%
Farebox Recovery 6.9% 6.7% 6.8%

Annual Change -2.7% 0.6%
Fare/Passenger $1.75 $1.97 $1.61

Annual Change 12.7% -18.4%

Performance Measure
Dial-A-Ride

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 14 

 

Ridership 

Exhibit X.57 illustrates the ridership for the Dial-A-Ride service over the three-year evaluation 

period.  Dial-A-Ride ridership decreased significantly in FY 2009/10 before rising 18.1 percent in 

FY 2010/11.  Overall, ridership on the City's Dial-A-Ride services decreased 6.5 percent during 

the evaluation period.  Given the fact the three of the City's Dial-A-Ride service offerings cater to 

the general public, the decline in ridership can be attributed to a drop in demand as a result of 

the recession.    

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Hour 

One of the most commonly-employed yardsticks for assessing service effectiveness, 

Passengers/VSH quantifies the number of rides provided within a single service hour.  

 

The City's Dial-A-Ride Passengers/VSH metric declined 15.2 percent across the evaluation 

period, from 2.11 Passengers/VSH in FY 2008/09 to 1.79 Passengers/VSH in FY 2010/11.  The 

industry standard for productivity for a demand-response service is at least 3.0 Passengers/VSH.  

Given the significant number of Vehicle Service Hours the City allocates to Dial-A-Ride service 

(nearly half of total system VSH), the low productivity of the Dial-A-Ride services amounts to a 

poor use of limited resources. In general, fixed-route services are much more cost-effective and 

productive than demand-response services. We believe the consolidation with the City of 

Vallejo's transit services under the Soltrans banner will provide an opportunity to identify more 

effective ways of providing transit service within Benicia.  

 

Passengers/Vehicle Service Mile 

The Passengers/VSM metric is another commonly employed standard for evaluating public 

transit service performance. It indicates the number of passengers transported for each service 

mile traveled.  

 

The City witnessed an overall increase of .01 Passengers/VSH (5.6 percent) across the evaluation 

period.  Once again, the City's Passengers/VSM metric is below industry standards, particularly 

given some of the Dial-A-Ride services are available to the public at-large.  

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Hour 

This indicator serves as a measure of a program’s cost-effectiveness by determining how much it 

costs to provide a single hour of revenue service.  

 

The City's Dial-A-Ride Operating Cost/VSH figure improved 20.4 percent across the evaluation 

period.  This is consistent with the fixed-route services and the system as a whole.  

 

Operating Cost/Vehicle Service Mile 

This indicator serves as a measure of a program’s-cost effectiveness by determining how much it 

costs the City to provide a single mile of revenue service.  



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                             PAGE 15 

 

The Operating Cost/VSM metric remained relatively steady across the evaluation period, 

decreasing by 0.8 percent.     

 

Operating Cost/Passenger 

Another measure of cost effectiveness, Operating Cost/Passenger determines how much the 

City spends on each unlinked trip it provides.   

 

The City's Operating Cost/Passenger metric decreased 6.1 percent across the evaluation period.  

That said, this metric is the most clear indication of the stark contrast between the cost-

effectiveness of a fixed-route service and a demand-response service when providing mobility 

options to the general public.  The City's fixed-route services in FY 2010/11 amounted to $5.86 

spent to carry each passenger while the City spent four times as much ($23.79) to carry each 

Dial-A-Ride passenger the same year.  

 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 

Farebox Recovery Ratio indicates the percentage of operating cost recovered through passenger 

fares. It is the most common measure of public subsidy of a transit service.  

 

The City's DAR farebox recovery ratio remained relatively stable across the evaluation period, 

declining only 2.1 percent (or one tenth of a percentage point) between FY 2008/09 and FY 

2010/11.  In general, Dial-A-Ride services should strive for a farebox recovery ratio of at least 10 

percent.  

 

Fare/Passenger 

This indicator measures the average fare collected for every unlinked trip provided by the City’s 

Dial-A-Ride service. 

 

In keeping with findings from the City's fixed-route services and the system as a whole, the City's 

Dial-A-Ride services collected a relatively robust amount of fare from each passenger. 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                                  PAGE 16 

Exhibit X.57   Dial-A-Ride Annual Ridership    Exhibit X.58  Dial-A-Ride Passengers/VSH  

8,429

6,708

7,925

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

2.11

1.45

1.79

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
Exhibit X.59   Dial-A-Ride Passengers/VSM    Exhibit X.60  Dial-A-Ride Operating Cost/VSH  

0.20

0.18

0.21

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15

0.20

0.25

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$53.33

$42.47 $42.47

$0.00

$10.00

$20.00

$30.00

$40.00

$50.00

$60.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

MOORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                                                                                                                                                  PAGE 17 

Exhibit X.61   Dial-A-Ride Operating Cost/VSM    Exhibit X.62   Dial-A-Ride Operating Cost/Passenger  

$5.07

$5.16

$5.03

$4.95

$5.00

$5.05

$5.10

$5.15

$5.20

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$25.32

$29.32

$23.79

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 
 

Exhibit X.63   Dial-A-Ride Farebox Recovery Ratio   Exhibit X.64  Dial-A-Ride Fare/Passenger  

6.9%

6.7%

6.8%

6.6%

6.7%

6.7%

6.8%

6.8%

6.9%

6.9%

7.0%

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 

$1.75

$1.97

$1.61

$0.00

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11

 



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Backgro
 
Included
 
Backgrou
elements
agreemen
address t
the decis
MTC to i
always, I
agency. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Augus
SolTr
Jim M
SRTP

ound: 

:  Proposal f

und and reas
 to include a
nt with the c
he public ele
ion authority
include the e
I deeply valu

st 11, 2011 
ans Board W

McElroy 
P Public Invo

from our con

son for inclu
a public surv
consultant. T
ements.  If th
y granted to 
elements, the
ue formal an

  (Solano 

Workshop 

olvement 

nsultant to en

usion:  In sup
vey and publ
Therefore, I r
he proposal 
me by the B

en I intend to
d informal B

63 

 

 County Tr

nhance publi

pport of our g
ic meetings.

requested an
meets our ne

Board; and th
o execute an

Board directi

ransit) 

ic involveme

guiding prin
.  These are n
d received th
eeds; the cos
he funds exis
n amendmen
ion on any m

A

ent in the pla

nciples, I am
not included
he attached p
sts are reaso
st within the

nt to the agre
matter related

Agenda Item
August 18, 

anning proce

m going to ad
d in the origi
proposal to 

onable and w
e grant from 
eement.  As 
d to the SolT

m IV.F 
2011 

ess. 

dd 
inal 

within 

Trans 



64 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 

 

 

memo          

to: 
Jim McElroy,  

Executive Director – SolTrans from:Michael Eshleman 

re: 
 
SolTrans SRTP Public Involvement date:  August 3, 2011 

 
The purpose of  this memo  is  to detail  the additional  tasks  requested by SolTrans  staff as a 
result  of  a  desire  to  enhance  the  public  involvement  aspects  of  the  ongoing  Short  Range 
Transit Plan development process.  The two tasks discussed below reflect what we believe are 
necessary additions  to  the scope currently  included  in  the contract.   The community survey 
would provide critical  insight  into the needs of non‐riders, allowing us to develop strategies 
geared  toward  attracting  “choice”  riders  into  the  SolTrans  customer  base.    The  public 
meetings  would  allow  us  to  vet  SRTP  findings  and  proposed  recommendations  with  the 
general  public.    Following  the  description  of  the  two  tasks,  we  have  included  a  budget 
detailing the costs associated with these tasks.  
 
Task 1: Community Survey 
We believe the service planning process would benefit significantly from a community survey 
quantifying  non‐rider  transit  needs,  identifying  barriers  (actual  and  perceived)  to  use  of 
existing  services,  and  prioritizing  preferred  service  enhancements.   Given  the  declining 
effectiveness  of  telephone  surveys  in  recent  years  and  to  ensure  optimal  flexibility,  we 
propose using an intercept methodology to conduct the survey. During the course of a week, 
our  project  team  would  conduct  the  community  intercept  survey  onsite  at  high‐volume 
locations  (i.e.,  libraries, community centers, grocery  stores, etc.)   We will employ either an 
“informal”  (without  a  clipboard)  or  “formal”  approach  (dependent  on  the  location  and 
audience)  to  ensure  success  in  soliciting  no  fewer  than  400  valid  responses.   Respondents 
unable to complete the survey onsite will be provided with a postage‐paid envelope to return 
the completed survey. 
  
Our  project  team  will  design  a  survey  instrument  for  use  during  the  community  survey 
process.  The  survey will  be  designed  to  evaluate  the  needs  and  opinions  of  the  non‐rider 
community and available  in Spanish.  Once the survey has been developed and approved by 
SolTrans staff, our project team will produce all survey forms and other associated materials.  
  

28159 avenue stanford, suite 110 
valencia, ca 91355 

 
888.743.5977 : p 
661.253.1208 : f 

www.moore-associates.net



Following  finalization  of  the  survey  instrument,  our  project  team  will  create 
both Microsoft Excel  and  SPSS  databases  to  facilitate  data  compilation  and  analysis.   As 
surveys are received, data will be verified and coded.   
  
Once all survey data has been entered into the SPSS platform, our staff will be responsible for 
error checking (cleaning) and data formatting.  Survey data will be verified for accuracy.  Our 
project  team will  then  run all simple  frequencies and determine –  through discussions with 
SolTrans  staff  –  cross‐tabulations  for  further  analysis.   The  final  analysis will detail  findings 
which will be incorporated into service planning scenarios and recommendations.  
 
Task 2: Community Meetings 
We believe the most valuable public transit recommendations are market‐driven.  Therefore, 
we propose to facilitate one workshop in each community (for a total of two) to solicit public 
comments.    
 
Our  goal  will  be  to  ensure  proactive  public  involvement  and  consensus  throughout  the 
planning process.   The meeting  in each community will consist of a brief overview outlining 
project  purpose,  goals,  and  deliverables  followed  by  the  presentation  of  potential  service 
scenarios along with the advantages and disadvantages of each.  Participants will be given the 
opportunity  to  review  and  comment  on  each  of  the  proposed  scenarios.    All  public 
participation  activities  and  public  input  for  each  SRTP will  be  documented  in  a  summary 
memo, which will be  incorporated  into  the  final  SRTP  report.   Moore & Associates will be 
responsible for the development of collateral necessary for promoting the public meetings.  
 
The following budget reflects the rates and overhead included within the original proposal.  
 

Exhibit 1  Budget for Additional Scope 
Labor Expenses Grand Total

Title Name Rate Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost
PROJECT MANAGER Michael Eshleman $75.00 28 $2,100.00 16 $1,200.00 44 $3,300.00
PRINCIPAL PLANNER Amber Collins $55.00 45 $2,475.00 15 $825.00 60 $3,300.00
SURVEY COORDINATOR Jose Perez $55.00 48 $2,640.00 18 $990.00 66 $3,630.00

121 $7,215.00 49 $3,015.00 170 $10,230.00

60% $4,329.00 $1,809.00 $6,138.00

$11,544.00 $4,824.00 $16,368.00

$1,200.00 $350.00 $1,550.00
$1,200.00 $350.00 $1,550.00

$12,744.00 $5,174.00 $17,918.00

TASK 2TASK 1

TOTAL COST

Burden and Overhead

Total Labor

Subtotal, Direct Labor

Direct Costs

Total Direct Costs
Travel/per diem

 
 
Thank you  for  the opportunity  to assist SolTrans with  this extremely exciting and  important 
project and please do not hesitate to call if you have any questions or concerns.  



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Backgro
 
Included
 
Backgrou
measurem
statemen
such a cr
guiding p
on the pr
importan
SRTP, th
used inte
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Augus
SolTr
Jim M
Draft-

ound: 

:  Draft Perf

und and reas
ment system

nt for your ne
ritical tool, b
principles.   T
roposed miss
nt overall app
hese will be p
ernally to foc

st 11, 2011 
ans Board W

McElroy 
- Performanc

formance Me

son for inclu
m during our w
ew agency.  N
but our time i
Therefore, d
sion statemen
proach to me
performance
cus on contin

  (Solano 

Workshop 

ce Measurem

easurement S

usion:  Althou
workshop to
Normally, w
is very short

during our w
nt and the su
easuring per
e metrics to b
nuous impro

67 

 

 County Tr

ment System

System chap

ugh we do n
oday, this ch
we carry out 
t and you hav
orkshop, I w
upporting co
formance of
be tracked an

ovement. 

ransit) 

m 

pter from the

not need to a
hapter includ

a more protr
ve put a grea

will ask that y
ore values.  T
f the agency.
nd reported 

A

e consultant.

address the p
des a propose
racted proce
at deal of eff
you conside
This section 
.  Once adop
upon to the 

Agenda Item 
August 18, 

 

performance 
ed mission 
ess to develo
ffort into the 
r and comm
includes an 

pted within th
Board as we

IV.G 
2011 

op 

ment 

he 
ell as 



68 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

 
MOORE & ASSOCIATES            PAGE 1 

CHAPTER X – PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT SYSTEM  
 

This  chapter  advances  a  Performance  Measurement  System  governing  the  SolTrans  public 

transit program serving the communities of Benicia and Vallejo. 

 

An  organization’s mission  or  visioning  statement  provides  a  foundation  for  its  Performance 

Measurement System.    In  the  case of SolTrans,  it  serves as a  focal point  for  the Short Range 

Transit Plan (SRTP).   We have developed the following mission statement based on discussions 

with staff and review of prior planning documents: 

 

The  overall  purpose  of  the  SolTrans  transit  program  is  to  increase  mobility 

opportunities for all citizens of Benicia and Vallejo, aid in improving air quality in 

the region, and reduce traffic congestion. 

 

At  a minimum,  the  transit  program  should  leverage  its  resources  in  the most 

efficient and  cost‐effective manner possible  to provide a  level of  intracity and 

regional  service  that  meets  the  needs  of  the  transit  dependent  in  the  two 

communities  and  provides  service  to  and  from  important  destination  points, 

which will encourage transit use as a viable mobility alternative. 

 

The Cities of Benicia and Vallejo, as well as the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) developed 

a series of seven principles guiding the creation of the new transit agency: 

 

 The  Benicia  Breeze  and  Vallejo  Transit  services  shall  be  consolidated  to  streamline, 

simplify,  and  improve  access  for  transit  riders  through  enhanced  service  coverage, 

frequency, affordability, and mobility options  contingent upon available  funding.   The 

consolidated  service  shall  be  responsible  for  coordinating  transportation  services  in 

Benicia and Vallejo and to locations beyond the two cities such as Bay Area Rapid Transit 

(BART) 

 Consolidated  transit  service  provides  an  opportunity  to  improve  standards  for 

greenhouse  gas  emissions  and  energy  reductions  and  reduce  single‐occupant  vehicle 

miles traveled, thereby minimizing the carbon footprint of Benicia and Vallejo residents. 

A consolidated transit service will further the Benicia and Solano County Climate Action 

Plans' greenhouse gas reduction targets.  

 The Benicia Breeze and Vallejo Transit service consolidation shall be consistent with the 

Countywide  Transportation  Plan  Transit  Element  to  maximize  the  ability  of  Solano 

residents,  workers,  and  visitors  to  reach  destinations  within  Solano  County,  and  to 

access regional transportation systems.  

 The consolidated transit service shall be designed to be comparatively cost effective and 

efficient while considering the unique characteristics of each jurisdiction. 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

 
MOORE & ASSOCIATES            PAGE 2 

 The consolidation of services shall be managed  in a public and  transparent process  to 

encourage  participation  by  residents,  stakeholders,  and  decision‐makers  in  both 

communities.  

 The consolidated transit service shall strive to maintain the continuity of current service 

provided  by  both  jurisdictions,  minimizing  service  disruptions  and  passenger 

inconveniences due to the transition.  If possible, service levels shall be maintained and 

expanded. 

 The consolidated transit service shall maximize opportunities for regional funding.  

 

Based on the guiding principles above, we have  identified the following core values which will 

support the SolTrans mission and vision: 

 Efficiency, 

 Effectiveness, 

 Responsiveness, 

 Inclusiveness, and  

 Environmental consciousness. 

 

An  effective  Performance  Measurement  System  is  composed  of  goals,  objectives,  and 

performance standards.   

 Goals are  statements  that qualify  the desired  results. They are  the end  toward which 

efforts are directed. They are general and timeless, yet theoretically attainable. 

 Objectives  provide  quantifiable  measures  of  the  goals.  They  are  more  precise  and 

capable of both attainment and measurement. 

 Standards set quantifiable targets for achieving the adopted goals. 

 

This Performance Measurement  System proposes  four  categories of  fixed‐route performance 

standards,  where  appropriate.    The  categories  vary  depending  upon  historic  ridership, 

frequency, and redundancy with other routes.  Routes leaving the core service area (i.e., Benicia 

and  Vallejo)  and  serving  regional  transit  hubs  and  employment  centers  are  classified  as 

"Regional" services and are evaluated based on standards for such services.  Those routes with 

high historic ridership, high frequency, and redundancy are classified as “Trunk Lines” and held 

to the highest standard. Those with low ridership, limited frequency, and little or no redundancy 

are  classified  as  “Life‐Lines,”  and  held  to  lower  standards  given  their  elimination  could 

jeopardize  mobility  for  mobility‐disadvantaged  persons.  “Regular”  routes  are  those  in  the 

middle of the spectrum, between Trunk Lines and Life Lines.  

 

The  following  tables  link  the adopted goal  to  the quantifiable measure;  then compares actual 

performance from FY 2010/11 with recommended performance standards. 

 

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

 
MOORE & ASSOCIATES                                               PAGE 3 

Exhibit x.1  Goals, Objectives, and Performance Standards 

Objective Performance Measure Performance Standard Actual Performance

Life‐line

Regular

Trunk

Regional

Dial‐A‐Ride

Life‐line

Regular

Trunk

Regional

Dial‐A‐Ride

Life‐line

Regular

Trunk

Regional

Dial‐A‐Ride

Life‐line

Regular

Trunk

Regional

Dial‐A‐Ride

Maximize Use of Transit Funding Coordinated Human Services Plan Little or no duplication of service  (spatially or temporally).

Fixed‐Route

Dial‐A‐Ride

Life‐line

Regular

Trunk

Regional

Dial‐A‐Ride

Life‐line

Regular

Trunk

Regional

Dial‐A‐Ride

Goal I. Operate an efficient and effective system that maximizes service and minimizes cost impacts.

Minimize Operating Costs

Increase Transit Usage

Operating Cost/VSH

Operating Cost/VSH

Operating Cost/Passenger

Farebox Recovery

Annual Growth in Ridership

Passengers/Vehicle Service Hour (VSH)

Passengers/Vehicle Service Mile (VSM)

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

 
MOORE & ASSOCIATES                                               PAGE 4 

Objective Performance Measure Performance Standard Actual Performance

Life‐line Two times daily

Regular Every 60 minutes

Trunk Every 30 minutes

Regional No set standard

Travel Time Travel time no more than three times that of car travel.

Ratio of Passengers to Available Seats No more than 145 percent of available seats.

Fixed‐Route Less than one passenger injury 100,000 passenger boardings.

Dial‐A‐Ride Less than one passenger injury 10,000 passenger boardings.

Fixed‐Route Minimum of 60,000 miles between preventable accidents.

Dial‐A‐Ride Minimum of 60,000 miles between preventable accidents.

Fixed‐Route 90 percent of all monthly trips operate on‐time (defined as no later than 5 minutes and no earlier than the published 

Dial‐A‐Ride 90 percent of all monthly trips operate on‐time (defined as within 15 minutes of the scheduled pick‐up time).

Dial‐A‐Ride Less than one percent of total monthly trips (defined as no later than 15 minutes past the schedule pick‐up time or missed 

entirely).

Dial‐A‐Ride Less than one percent of the monthly trips (defined as no later than 30 minutes past the scheduled pick‐up time or missed 

entirely).

Transfer Wait Times No more than 5 minutes for transfer wait times.

Fixed‐Route Less than five percent of the monthly transfers by route (missed transfer defined as missed connection from one bus to 

Fixed‐Route

Dial‐A‐Ride

Fixed‐Route All regularly scheduled maintenance completed within 500 miles or five days of scheduled date/cycle.

Dial‐A‐Ride

Transit Facilities Maintenace Program Implement Transit Facilities Maintenace Program

Complaint Resolution Monthly reports detailing number and type of complaint as well as resolution status.

Professional Development Offer Mandatory and Optional Training Opportunities to Improve Safety and Professional Development

Fixed‐Route No less than 10,000 miles between road calls.  Defined as incidence where service is interrupted longer than five minutes 

due to a mechanical failure (except for flat tires).

Dial‐A‐Ride

Demand‐Response Trip Reservations 90 percent of DAR customers and all ADA‐eligible trips scheduled within 60 minutes of requested pick‐up time.

Demand‐Response Trip Denials No more than three percent of total monthly trip requests result in a denial due to capacity constraints, as defined by the 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  

Missed Transfers

Spare Ratio

Maintenance Schedule

Road Calls

Provide High‐Quality Service

Provide Safe Service

Provide Reliable Transit Service

Frequency (Headways)

Passenger Injuries

Preventable Accidents

On‐Time Performance

Missed Trips

Goal II.   Provide safe, reliable, and high quality transportation.

 



 SOLTRANS – SHORT RANGE TRANSIT PLAN 

 
MOORE & ASSOCIATES                                               PAGE 5 

Objective Performance Measure Performance Standard Actual Performance

Ongoing, Mandatory Enhancement
Regularly Programmed Service Evaluations Independent evaluations at intervals of no greater than five years. 

Ongoing, Mandatory Reporting
Regularly Programmed Data Collection and 

Reporting

Monthly performance reports including such information as vehicle service hours, vehicle service mileage, fare revenue, 

ridership, accidents, and injuries.

Objective Performance Measure Performance Standard Actual Performance

Development of Marketing Plan  Actual Expenditures Not less than three percent of annual operating budget. 

Conduct Recurring surveys of transit customers.

Conduct annual outreach prior to meetings to encourage public input on unmet transit needs (TDA Article 8).
Encourage Citizen Participation

Provide Various Opportunities for 

Customer Feedback

Goal III.  Evaluate, monitor and improve transit services on an on‐going basis.

Goal IV.  Undertake effective marketing, outreach, and public participation.

 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
DATE:  
TO:  
FROM: 
RE:  
 
 
Backgro
 
Included
check” su
 
Backgrou
perceptio
Therefor
on-time p
improvem
the overa
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Augus
SolTr
Jim M
SolTr

ound: 

:  A docume
urvey compl

und and reas
on of service
e, service ch
performance
ment going f
all performan

st 11, 2011 
ans Board W

McElroy 
ans On-Tim

ent prepared 
leted as part 

son for inclu
e quality.  On
hanges propo
e.  This piece
forward.  Th
nce of the ex

  (Solano 

Workshop 

me Performan

by our SRT
of the SRTP

usion:  So mu
n-time perfo
osed from th
e gives us a r
his is primari
xisting system

73 

 

 County Tr

nce 

P consultant
P process. 

uch of transi
rmance is a 

he SRTP proc
really good b
ily backgrou
m.   

ransit) 

t that is deriv

it usage is dr
critical piec
cess need to
baseline from

und informat

A

ved from res

riven by the 
e of service 

o be evaluate
m which to m
tion to help i

Agenda Item 
August 18, 

sults of a “ri

public’s 
quality.  

ed for improv
measure 
in understand

IV.H 
2011 

de 

ving 

ding 



74 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 

 

 

memo          

to: 
Jim McElroy,  

Executive Director – SolTrans from: Michael Eshleman 

re: 
 
SolTrans On-Time Performance date:  August 10, 2011 

 
To help identify issues potentially impacting the quality of the customer experience as well as 

identify  possible  scheduling  issues,  Moore  &  Associates  conducted  a  ride  check  of  100 

percent  of  fixed‐route  trips  provided  by  the  Cities  of  Vallejo  and  Benicia  across  a  single 

representative service day.   

 

The following criteria were used to evaluate on‐time performance:  

 On‐time, defined as trip departure occurring up  to  five minutes after the published 

schedule time. 

 Early, defined as any departure from an established time‐point occurring in advance 

of the published schedule time. 

 Late, defined as any departure from an established time‐point occurring five or more 

minutes after the published schedule time. 

 Missed,  defined  as  any  departure  from  an  established  time‐point  occurring  10  or 

more minutes after the published schedule time.  

 

From a provision of service perspective, industry standards suggest on‐time performance be 

at  least 90 percent with no early departures.   The evaluation revealed 57 percent of Vallejo 

Transit trips and 46 percent of Benicia Breeze trips operated on‐time during the evaluation 

period.  To delve deeper into the results of the ride checks, we split them up by route type.  

For Vallejo  Transit,  “Local”  routes  include Routes  1,  2,  3,  4,  5,  6,  and  7; while  “Regional” 

routes include 78, 80, 85, and 200.  For Benicia Breeze, “Flex Route” includes Routes 21 and 

22;  “School  Tripper”  includes  Routes  15  and  17;  “Shuttle”  includes  the DVC  and Medical 

shuttles; and “Regional” includes Route 76.  

 

28159 avenue stanford, suite 110 
valencia, ca 91355 

 
888.743.5977 : p 
661.253.1208 : f 

www.moore-associates.net



The  chart  below  illustrates  Vallejo  Transit’s  on‐time  performance  during  the  evaluation 

period. The performance of  the  local and  regional services was comparable.    It  is clear  the 

most significant problem related to on‐time performance is the incidence of early departures 

on  local  routes.  Early  departures  (i.e.,  running  “hot”)  have  a  negative  impact  on  the 

customer’s  perception  of  program  reliability.    They  can  cause  the  transit  service  to  be 

perceived as unreliable for  its  inability to meet the published time.   Patrons who arrive to a 

stop  on‐time  are more  likely  to miss  their  bus  if  the  driver  leaves  before  the  published 

schedule.    To  address  this  issue,  SolTrans  should  enforce  a  “no  early  departure”  policy 

moving  forward.   This  should ensure no bus  leaves  its  time point ahead of  schedule.   The 

primary benefit of  this policy  is  its  low cost  to  implement and  requires  few  (if any) service 

changes.   

 

Early  departures/arrivals  on  regional  routes  are  less  of  an  issue  because many  customers 

welcome the bus arriving at the destination (BART or the ferry building) early.   In the event 

the  early  departure  issue  on  the  local  fixed‐route  service  is  resolved,  SolTrans would  see 

significant  improvement  in  on‐time  performance,  resulting  in  increased  customer 

satisfaction.  

 

We believe the late departures and missed trips are largely the result of congestion and this 

can be resolved through schedule revisions which will take place following the completion of 

the SRTP.  

 

Exhibit 1  Vallejo Transit On‐Time Performance 

 
The on‐time performance issues faced by the Benicia Breeze system are largely unrelated to 

those faced by Vallejo Transit.   The Benicia Breeze system had only minor  issues with early 

departures  and  instead  encountered  major  issues  with  late  departures.    This  can  be 

attributed  to  the  fact  the  City  operates  a  flex‐route  service,  shuttles,  and  school  trippers 

which are difficult to operate in a timely manner by their very nature.  Flex routes must often 

deviate well off the route to pick up passengers, adding significantly to travel time.   School 



trippers  have  few  stops/time  points  and  are  at  the mercy  of  passenger  loads  (i.e., more 

passengers, more  late  trips.    Route  76  travels  into  Contra  Costa  County  and  encounters 

congestion, contributing toward late departures.  

 

Exhibit 2  Benicia Breeze On‐Time Performance 

54.7%
39.7%

20.0%

45.2%

14.1%

7.9%
9.5%

21.9%
52.4%

80.0%

45.2%

9.4%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Flex‐Route School Tripper Shuttle Regional

Missed

Late

Early

On‐Time

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	(00) SolTrans Board Workshop Agenda_08-18-11
	(01) IntroductionOverview
	(01.a) This page intentionally left blank
	(02) Transition Plan Guiding Principles Cover
	(02.a) This page intentionally left blank
	(02.b) Guiding Principles for Consolidation
	(02.c) This page intentionally left blank
	(03) SRTP Schedule Cover
	(03.a) This page intentionally left blank
	(03.b) Soltrans SRTP Schedule Memo
	(03.c) This page intentionally left blank
	(04) Financial Background Cover
	(04.a) This page intentionally left blank
	(04.b) Financial Background
	(04.b.1) Attachment A
	(04.b.2) Attachment A page 2
	(04.c) Attachment B
	(04.d) This page intentionally left blank
	(05) Service Evaluation Cover
	(05.a) This page intentionally left blank
	(05.b) Service Evaluation
	(06) SRTP Public Involvement Cover
	(06.a) This page intentionally left blank
	(06.b) Soltrans Public Involvement Memo
	(07) Draft- Performance Measurement System Cover
	(07.a) This page intentionally left blank
	(07.b) Performance Measurement System
	(07.c) Performance Measurement System
	(08) SolTrans On-Time Performance Cover
	(08.a) This page intentionally left blank
	(08.b) Soltrans SRTP OTP Memo



